








1/18/2013 LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING FORMULA (LCFF)
GOVERNOR'S JAN. 10, 2013, BUDGET RELEASE

DISCLAIMER:   BUDGET RELEASE DOES NOT PROVIDE ENOUGH INFORMATION TO ACCURATELY DETERMINE
FUTURE FUNDING IF LCFF IS ADOPTED INTO LAW

•FIGURES ARE FOR DEMOSTRATION PURPOSES ONLY
•NECESSARY SMALL SCHOOL FUTURE FUNDING IS UNKNOWN
•2012-2013 2ND INTERIM WILL BE BASED ON CURRENT FUNDING FORMULA
•HOLD HARMLESS AND TRANSITION CLAUSE
•BASE GRANT SHOULD EQUAL THE UNDEFICITED STATEWIDE AVERAGE REVENUE LIMIT OF $6,816

K 1-3 4-6 7-8 9-12 Total
LCFF BASE GRANT 6,342.00 6,342.00 6,437.00 6,628.00 7,680.00
Attendance 22.33 73.42 86.47 55.84 123.56 361.62

Basic Grant 141,616.86 465,629.64 556,607.39 370,107.52 948,940.80 2,482,902.21

DW 46% Don't know grade span-rough estimate 399,747.26
Supplemental unduplicated / 35% per each 2,882,649.47

COLA  @ 1.65% 47,563.72

Subtotal before add ons

CSR add on amt Per ADA (K-3 95.75 @ 712) 68,174

CTE add on amt (9-12  123.56 @ $215) 26,565.40
CTE Total

Transportation 2011-2012  Funding Level 475,865

Total LCFF Proposed Funding Process 3,500,817.58

Current Funding Amount
2012-2013 RBL deficited 3,033,773
Tier III Funding 410,000Tier III Funding 410,000
CSR 100,000
Transportation 475,865         FUNDING TRANSITIONED INTO LCFF
EL 24,000
AG Incentive 11,065

Hold Harmless Base 4,054,703



Cafeteria -

From: Corie Zuck [czuck@preferredmealsystems.com]
Sent: Friday, January 25, 2013 2:24 PM
To: Rose Asquith
Subject: RFP (Sierra Plumas Joint)

Hi Rose,

I received the final word today that we will not be able to provide meal service to your school district.
Our programs and policies have changes for 2013 and we have new guidelines involving ADP (average
daily participation) and logistics.

Thank you for your initial interest and have a great rest of the school year.

Regards,

Corie

Corie Zuck
Regional Sales Director
Preferred Meal Systems, Inc.
Cell: 415-515-3615
E-mail: czuck@preferredmealsystems.com



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2012/13Balances through January

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD   

1100 1,410,527.00 1,388,307.00 668,862.65 687,108.60 32,335.75 Teachers Salaries

1120 40,368.00 46,420.00 16,090.00 30,330.00 Certificated Substitutes

1300 282,602.00 279,449.00 116,437.30 163,012.22 .52-Certificated Superv/Admin Sala

1310 18,000.00 28,000.00 5,000.00 8,000.00 15,000.00 Teacher In Charge/Head Teacher

1900 8,749.00 8,574.00 3,572.50 5,001.50 .00 Other Certificated Salaries

Total for Object 1000 1,760,246.00 1,750,750.00 793,872.45 879,212.32 77,665.23 

2100 127,399.00 136,017.00 62,343.06 62,488.40 11,185.54 Instructional Aides Salaries

2200 324,802.00 330,488.00 105,637.26 168,842.63 56,008.11 Classified Support Salaries

2220 18,404.00 18,963.58 559.58-Classified Support Substitute

2300 2,700.00 2,115.00 1,035.00 1,080.00 Classified Sup/Admin Salaries

2400 267,663.00 239,706.00 99,126.61 140,518.13 61.26 Clerical & Office Salaries

2900 24,905.00 43,090.00 11,150.13 10,255.52 21,684.35 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 747,469.00 769,820.00 278,257.06 402,103.26 89,459.68 

3101 135,489.00 136,176.00 62,834.25 68,702.58 4,639.17 State Teachers Retirement Syst

3102 825.00 825.00 825.00 State Teachers Retirement Syst

3201 6,095.00 5,605.00 2,672.30 2,797.89 134.81 Public Employees Retirement Sy

3202 81,250.00 69,161.00 26,279.70 36,918.88 5,962.42 Public Employees Retirement Sy

3212 12,884.00 10,128.00 3,860.00 5,800.00 468.00 Pers Pickup-Classified Employe

3311 3,064.00 3,855.00 1,366.35 1,758.81 729.84 OASDI-Certificated Positions

3312 44,934.00 46,559.00 16,987.98 24,778.06 4,792.96 OASDI-Classified Positions

3321 25,440.00 23,441.00 10,638.05 12,563.31 239.64 Medicare-Certificated Position

3322 10,670.00 11,049.00 3,973.03 5,805.38 1,270.59 Medicare-Classified Positions

3401 390,571.00 388,263.00 190,728.80 197,533.71 .49 Health & Welfare -Certificated

3402 183,990.00 146,344.00 67,488.19 101,926.08 23,070.27-Health & Welfare-Classified Po

3501 20,699.00 19,215.00 8,732.40 11,325.38 842.78-State Unemployment Insurance-C

3502 8,229.00 8,469.00 3,060.82 4,924.21 483.97 State Unemployement Insurance-

3601 99,122.00 91,746.00 41,917.65 46,517.03 3,311.32 Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3602 40,056.00 41,633.00 14,985.04 21,900.58 4,747.38 Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3701 121,060.00 121,041.00 66,243.34 54,797.66 Retiree Benefits Cert.

3702 2,306.74 2,306.74-Retiree Benefits Class

3801 787.00 375.20 392.84 18.96 PERS Reduction-Certificated

3802 10,686.00 9,302.00 3,622.55 5,115.84 563.61 PERS Reduction-Classified

3901 399.00 418.00 209.45 2,220.21 2,011.66-Other Benefits, Certificated P

3902 4,613.48 4,613.48-Other Benefits, Classified Pos

Total for Object 3000 1,195,463.00 1,134,017.00 459,731.76 624,144.35 50,140.89 

4100 9,266.00 11,615.00 772.73 1,369.09 9,473.18 Textbooks

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 7, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 29 2013 

11:33AM
006 - Sierra-Plumas Jnt Unif Schl Dist

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3212
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3321
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3322
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3702
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3802
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2012/13Balances through January

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD    (continued)

4200 681.80 5,603.09 6,284.89-Books Other Than Textbooks

4300 86,917.00 93,848.00 18,016.05 68,605.44 7,226.51 Materials and Supplies

4350 6,500.00 6,500.00 3,584.14 2,731.71 184.15 Vehicle Maint. M&S

4400 31,639.00 8,972.96 31,358.23 8,692.19-Non-Capital Equipment (Up to $

Total for Object 4000 102,683.00 143,602.00 32,027.68 109,667.56 1,906.76 

5100 568,724.00 571,243.00 292,607.72 278,635.28 .00 Subagreement for Services

5200 34,300.00 51,526.00 9,098.99 8,855.94 33,571.07 Travel & Conferences

5300 5,447.00 6,707.00 756.00 6,623.34 672.34-Dues & Membership

5400 51,300.00 51,300.00 47,796.24 3,503.76 Insurance-Fire, liability, etc

5510 91,634.00 91,634.00 51,636.84 33,967.21 6,029.95 Power

5520 20,713.00 20,713.00 4,113.75 3,446.25 13,153.00 Garbage

5530 48,600.00 48,600.00 11,672.37 36,929.10 1.47-Water

5540 71,775.00 71,775.00 49,027.47 22,497.53 250.00 Propane

5590 15,500.00 15,500.00 8,816.03 6,183.97 500.00 Miscellaneous Utilities

5600 30,773.00 30,773.00 4,670.45 20,547.44 5,555.11 Rentals, Leases & Repairs

5800 53,000.00 53,000.00 27,150.66 24,649.34 1,200.00 Services & Operating Expense

5810 316.25 620.25- 304.00 Legal Expenses

5812 3,550.00 3,550.00 379.04 3,170.96 Board Election Expense

5840 12,000.00 12,000.00 7,750.00 4,750.00 500.00-Audit Expense

5860 15,613.00 15,613.00 5,430.45 4,450.97 5,731.58 Solid Waste Tax

5870 328.00 328.00 328.00 Property Tax - Plioicene Mobil

5890 346,504.00 309,830.00 290,592.02 152,765.80 133,527.82-Miscellaneous Contracts/Servic

5899 14,366.66 3,658.19 18,024.85-SCOE Interagency Reimburse

5900 5,853.00 5,853.00 1,125.00 1,800.82 2,927.18 Communications

5910 16,839.00 16,839.00 11,416.38 2,008.79 3,413.83 Telephone-Monthly Service

5920 4,800.00 4,800.00 1,245.12 1,454.88 2,100.00 T Lines

5990 225.00 225.00 225.00 Other Communications

Total for Object 5000 1,397,478.00 1,381,809.00 791,792.16 660,779.88 70,763.04-

6200 190,742.00 212,350.00 357.85 30,466.96 181,525.19 BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT OF BUIL

6400 16,733.00 16,732.58 .42 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 190,742.00 229,083.00 357.85 47,199.54 181,525.61 

7142 35,594.00 16,774.00 16,774.00 Other Tuition, Excess Cost, an

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

7616 78,281.00 78,281.00 78,281.00 Trans fr Gen Fund to Cafeteria

Total for Object 7000 113,875.00 95,055.00 .00 .00 95,055.00 

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 7, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 29 2013 

11:33AM
006 - Sierra-Plumas Jnt Unif Schl Dist

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5510
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5520
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5530
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5540
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5590
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5812
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5840
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5860
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5870
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5910
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5920
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5990
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7142
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=55890&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7616


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2012/13Balances through January

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD    (continued)

5,507,956.00 5,504,136.00 2,356,038.96 2,723,106.91 424,990.13 Total for Expense accounts

424,990.13 5,507,956.00 5,504,136.00 2,356,038.96 2,723,106.91 Total for Org 006, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2013, Period = 7, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 29 2013 

11:33AM
006 - Sierra-Plumas Jnt Unif Schl Dist



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH
2012-2013

Loyalton Loyalton Loyalton Downieville Downieville Sierra Long Term
Elementary Middle High Elementary Jr/Sr High Pass Cont ISP TOTAL

Ending 2011-2012 172 53 105 29 24 6 3 392
1st Day 2012-2013 158 54 113 27 26 3 8 389
2012 CBEDS 159 53 104 28 24 5 0 373

Month
September 1 161 54 110 28 24 6 5 388

October 2 159 53 106 29 24 6 5 382

November 3 157 50 105 28 25 9 8 382

December 4 162 51 106 28 25 8 7 387

January 5 163 53 105 30 26 9 8 394

February 6 0

March 7 0

April 8 0

May 9 0

June 10 0

Prepared by sroberts 2/7/2013 Page 1

June 10 0

S-PJUSD SDC Opportunity Washoe Cnty
P-1 ADA 361.62 0 1.83 16.21
P-2 ADA
Annual ADA

doc/Attendance 2012-2013 /Board Summary 2012-2013

Enrollment difference from June 2012 to
fifth school month ending January 25, 2013: +2

2011-2012 P1 ADA = 389.34
2011-2012 P2 ADA=  382.81
2011 -2012 Annual ADA = 380.57

Prepared by sroberts 2/7/2013 Page 1



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH
2012-2013

Prepared by sroberts 2/7/2013 Page 2Prepared by sroberts 2/7/2013 Page 2



MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

January 8, 2013
Loyalton Middle School, Room 4, Loyalton, California

This meeting was videoconferenced to Downieville School, Downieville, CA.

A.  CALL TO ORDER

President MIKE MOORE called the meeting to order at 7:42 pm.

B.  ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mr. Mike Moore, President
Mr. Tim Driscoll, Vice President
Ms. Sharon Dryden, Clerk
Mr. Allen Wright, Member
Ms. Patty Hall, Member

ABSENT: None

VACANT: None

STAFF: Mr. Stan Hardeman, Superintendent
Ms. Rose Asquith, Business Manager
Ms. Hannah Tomatis, Administrative Assistant
Ms. Marla Stock, Site Administrator
Mr. Derek Cooper, Site Administrator
Ms. Marlene Mongolo, Testing/SELPA Director

C.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
The agenda was approved with the following change: Item “F 1” will be for discussion only and will be
added to the February agenda.
MSCU/DRISCOLL/HALL

D.  INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. CORRESPONDENCE

2. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
a. Consolidation Plan – Mr. Hardeman has had numerous inquiries and questions regarding the District

Office moving to Loyalton.  The District is not abandoning the Sierraville building; the District has
obligations to the building. Mr. Hardeman met with Mr. Tim Beals, Sierra County Planning, and
members of the Sierra County Board of Supervisors where they focused on issues on both sides that
need to be resolved.

b. Child Nutrition (Cafeteria) The District has still found only one vendor that provides frozen meals.

c. 2013-14 Budget and Staffing – At the next board meeting the District will provide the Board with
the recommended reductions for the 2013-14 school year. The District Office, Leadership and
District Advisory Committee have given input.



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
January 8, 2013

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MINUTES

2

3. BUSINESS REPORT

There were no comments on the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/12 to 12/31/12 or the
Fourth Month Enrollments for the 2012-2013 School Year.

4. STAFF REPORTS

Derek Cooper, Administrator for DVL, LES and LMS reported on the music concert, assemblies,
basketball games and new electives (music).

Marla Stock, Administrator for LHS, reported on the graphics on the gym floor and other art additions,
basketball and the Cougar Classic Tournament.

Cali Griffin, Teacher, LHS, reported on ALA, computers, California State Farmer’s Degree and the
start of the gymnastics competition (p.e.).

5. SPTA REPORTS

There were no reports.

6. BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS

MOORE commented that several Sierraville residents who had wished to attend tonight’s meeting but
were unable to, had concerns on the impact to the post office and the local restaurants if the District
Office moves to Loyalton. Also, Mr. Tim Beals, Sierra County Building and Planning Departments,
contacted him and requested the Board’s decision be postponed.

DRYDEN affirmed Mr. Cooper’s report on the Christmas music program and thanked those involved.

7. PUBLIC COMMENT

President MOORE opened the meeting for public comment at 6:57 pm.

 Comment from the public (move of the District Office): Concern about lack of public notification
on the move of the District Office to Loyalton. It was mentioned that the Proposition 40 funds would
have been used differently if they knew the District was going to abandon the school. There is a
concern that a “stair step” process could affect all of Sierraville. A request was made to postpone the
vote to allow community input and for an explanation as to why the decisions are being made.

 Comment from the public (same topic): The speaker was part of the group that put together the
plan to use the Prop 40 money. The district had a lot to say as to how the money was spent and as a
result, the ADA compliant ramp was installed.  The plan always was for it to be a joint use facility. A
request was made for more time to consider any action.

 Comment from the public (same topic): A statement was made indicating that Sierraville is the
glue that holds the two sides (east and west sides of the school district) together. A request was made to
seek more input before making a final decision.

President MOORE closed the meeting for public comment at 7:03 pm.



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
January 8, 2013

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MINUTES

3

E.  CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items were included on the consent calendar:

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held December 11, 2012
2. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of December 2012
3. Approval of Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for quarter ending December 31, 2012.

No complaints regarding textbooks and instructional materials, teacher vacancy or misassignment or conditions of facilities
were filed with Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District during the quarter ending December 31, 2012.

4. Authorization to submit Consolidated Application, Part II
MSCU/WRIGHT/HALL

F.  ACTION ITEMS

1.   NEW BUSINESS

a. Acceptance of 2011-2012 Financial Audit
MSCU/DRISCOLL/DRYDEN

b. Authorization to fill 1.0 FTE Custodian position, Loyalton High School
MSCU/WRIGHT/DRISCOLL

c. Adoption of Resolution No. 12-013, School Closure – Loyalton Middle School; Reconfigure
Loyalton High School
DRISCOLL/WRIGHT
MOORE stated that he is in favor of this decision.  He asked for comments from the public.
DRYDEN also asked for any public comment.  There were none.
ROLL CALL VOTE:
DRISCOLL: AYE
DRYDEN: AYE
HALL: AYE
MOORE: AYE
WRIGHT: AYE
Motion Passed Unanimously

d. Adoption of Resolution No. 12-014, Relocate District Administration Office to Loyalton
Elementary/Middle School Portable Buildings
WRIGHT/DRISCOLL
DISCUSSION:
DRYDEN opened the discussion stating she had received ph one calls of concern.
DRISCOLL referred to the existing Memorandum Of Understanding.
Rose Asquith explained that the discussion regarding the District Office move began with the
County of Sierra a year ago and the 7-11 Committee was formed six months ago.
The Public asked for clarification as to whether the District Office move is based on whether the
LMS moves to LHS and whether the greatest cost savings is the movement of the middle school.
Ms. Asquith responded that at the present time, moving the District Office will allow immediate
savings; the savings from the LMS will be realized in the future.  The immediate positive is that
more opportunities for the students will be provided.



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
January 8, 2013

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MINUTES

4

A comment from the public stated that it is important that the board take into consideration the
moral obligation. The Sierraville community feels strongly that the District is abandoning the
partnership.
Ms. Asquith explained that the MOU indicates that the District is responsible for the infrastructure
within the school and that it is available to the community for use.
MOORE called for the vote.
ROLL CALL VOTE:
DRISCOLL: AYE
DRYDEN: AYE
HALL: AYE
MOORE: AYE
WRIGHT: AYE
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

e. Authorization for Superintendent enter into a revised Contract for Professional Services for  CRM
Group, Kevin Nolen, Roof Replacement Project for Loyalton High School
WRIGHT/DRISCOLL
DRYDEN:  Asked for clarification on Item 3, Fee Scale.
WRIGHT motioned to lay the item on the table for the February meeting until more clarification
could be provided. DRISCOLL seconded.  Motion passed unanimously.

f. Adoption of Resolution No. 12-015, Approval for Bridge Financing for Loyalton High School roof
project
MSCU/WRIGHT/DRISCOLL
Clarification:  The State Allocation Board approved the facility project (roof) at 60 %; they have
not apportioned it yet. The matching funds from the state will be requested after we go to the State
Allocation Board in February.

ROLL CALL VOTE:
DRISCOLL: AYE
DRYDEN: AYE
HALL: AYE
MOORE: AYE
WRIGHT: AYE
MOTION PASSED

g. Discussion with possible Direction/Action regarding Out of District Attendance
WRIGHT is concerned that there are students attending other school who live in our district.
Discussion continued about options and ways to account for students in our district.

h. Assignment of Michael Moore and Patty Hall to the Child Nutrition Committee.
So designated by President Moore.

i. Approval of Teacher Computer Buy/Loan Program
DISCUSSION ONLY
MOORE requested a proposal be brought to the Board in February.

j. Student School Accountability Report Card, Downieville Elementary School
MSCU/DRISCOLL/HALL



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
January 8, 2013

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MINUTES

5

k. Student School Accountability Report Card, Downieville Junior/Senior High School, with changes
regarding HVAC system and employee FTE.

WRIGHT motion that Items j through n be voted on together and discussion will be on all items.
MSCU/WRIGHT/DRISCOLL

Discussion/Changes:
HVAC system, identify as replacement needed.
School psychologist listed per FTE, per site.
Include support staff.

l. Student School Accountability Report Card, Loyalton Elementary School

m. Student School Accountability Report Card, Loyalton Middle School

n. Student School Accountability Report Card, Loyalton High School
MSCU/DRYDEN/DRISCOLL

G.  ADVANCED PLANNING

1.   The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on February 12, 2013, Downieville School, Downieville,
California, immediately following the 6:00 pm meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education.

Suggested Agenda items:

a. Title 1 School Level Parent Involvement Policy

2. A Special Board Meeting will be held on February 26, 2013, Loyalton Middle School, Room 4, at 6 pm.

H. PUBLIC COMMENT

The meeting opened for any public comments regarding the following Closed Session item at 8:10 pm:

1. California Education Code §48915 and 48916, Student Stipulated Expulsion Order Revocation,
Student 11-12-01

There was no comment. Public comment closed at 8:10 pm.

I. CLOSED SESSION

The Board of Trustees, Mr. Stanford J. Hardeman and Ms. Marla Stock will now move into Closed Session
to consider and/or take action upon the preceding item.

J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 8:27 pm.

1. Report Out
WRIGHT motioned that the Student Stipulated Expulsion Order, Student 11-12-01, be revoked.
Seconded by HALL.
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
January 8, 2013

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MINUTES

6

K. ADJOURNMENT

MSCU/DRISCOLL/DRYDEN

ADJOURNED at 8:29 pm.

______________________ ____________________________________
Sharon Dryden, Clerk Stanford J. Hardeman, Superintendent



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2013 through 01/31/2013

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

A-1 CHEMICAL INC. 01-430001/16/201300078122 1,086.23 

13-4300 1,338.11 251.88 

GECRB/AMAZON 01-420001/16/201300078123 232.72 

AT&T 01-592001/16/201300078124 243.72 

AVAYA, INC 01-560001/16/201300078125 301.26 

BURNEY'S 13-430001/16/201300078126 185.01 

CAPITOL ADVISORS GROUP, LLC 01-589001/16/201300078127 5,000.00 

CITY OF LOYALTON 01-553001/16/201300078128 5,218.50 

DOWNIEVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY DIS 01-553001/16/201300078129 40.00 

EASTBAY TEAM SRV DEPT 5374 01-430001/16/201300078130 150.09 

FLINN SCIENTIFIC, INC. 01-430001/16/201300078131 47.16 

GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-470001/16/201300078132 47.53 

SUSAN GRESSEL 01-520001/16/201300078133 11.00 

CAROLINE GRIFFIN 01-520001/16/201300078134 592.63 

JUDY HALL 01-520001/16/201300078135 64.84 

AMY HOLLAND 01-520001/16/201300078136 11.00 

LES SCHAWB TIRE CENTER 01-435001/16/201300078137 801.69 

LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-551001/16/201300078138 3,488.71 

MCCARTHY SIGN CO. 01-430001/16/201300078139 3,200.00 

MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-470001/16/201300078140 366.07 

MIKE MOORE 01-520001/16/201300078141 27.75 

ROBERT MORALES 13-430001/16/201300078142 22.91 

MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 01-589001/16/201300078143 7.50 

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-551001/16/201300078144 3,628.89 

PLAZA TIRE & AUTO SERVICE 01-435001/16/201300078145 204.29 

PLUMAS-SIERRA RURAL ELECT.COP 01-551001/16/201300078146 340.96 

01-5899 454.61 113.65 

RELIABLE AUTO GLASS 01-435001/16/201300078147 202.70 

SCHOOL PATHWAYS LLC 01-580001/16/201300078148 150.00 

SIERRA DISPOSAL 01-552001/16/201300078149 515.25 

01-5899 525.25 10.00 

SIERRA HARDWARE 01-430001/16/201300078150 107.62 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430001/16/201300078151 577.57 

01-6200 629.10 51.53 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 01-589001/16/201300078152 246.76 

13-5800 255.76 9.00 

SIERRA TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, LLC 01-435001/16/201300078153 300.00 

01-5100 11,652.90 

01-5800 14,036.10 2,083.20 

SIERRAVILLE PUD 01-553001/16/201300078154 92.25 

01-5899 123.00 30.75 

SUBURBAN PROPANE 01-554001/16/201300078155 1,645.40 

01-5899 1,743.07 97.67 

TIMBERLINE AUTO PARTS &       POWER 

EQUIPMENT

01-435001/16/201300078156 4.50 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-390101/16/201300078157 1,005.38 

01-3902 2,439.48 

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 29 2013 

11:35AM

006 - Sierra-Plumas Jnt Unif Schl Dist

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2013 through 01/31/2013

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-953501/16/201300078157 13,348.14 

76-9576 73,782.98 56,989.98 

US FOODSERVICE, INC. 13-430001/16/201300078158 79.53 

13-4700 978.97 899.44 

U.S. BANK 01-430001/16/201300078159 408.41 

01-4400 947.02 538.61 

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. 01-430001/16/201300078160 176.97 

01-5200 15.01 

01-9210 404.03 212.05 

WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY COMPANY 13-430001/16/201300078161 164.09 

Unpaid Sales Tax 11.09- 153.00 

WHITE'S SIERRA STATION, INC 01-435001/16/201300078162 647.73 

YOUNG'S CARPET ONE 01-589001/16/201300078163 1,443.51 

AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-560001/30/201300078164 86.41 

AT&T 01-589001/30/201300078165 29.50 

01-5910 137.97 108.47 

IRVING CHRISTENSEN 01-868101/30/201300078166 3,668.85 

CURRENT ELECTRIC & ALARM, INC. 01-560001/30/201300078167 180.00 

DICK BLICK ART MATERIALS 01-430001/30/201300078168 255.40 

STEPHEN FILLO 01-435001/30/201300078169 17.09 

GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-470001/30/201300078170 242.90 

HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-554001/30/201300078171 1,631.84 

01-5590 3,041.19 

01-5899 5,216.98 543.95 

INLAND SUPPLY 01-430001/30/201300078172 584.13 

KBA COACH.COM 01-430001/30/201300078173 104.00 

MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-560001/30/201300078174 200.00 

LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-551001/30/201300078175 2,032.15 

RACHEL LITTLE 01-510001/30/201300078176 134.80 

MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-470001/30/201300078177 327.98 

NEVADA POWER PRODUCTS, INC 01-430001/30/201300078178 127.72 

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-551001/30/201300078179 71.11 

RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-430001/30/201300078180 82.67 

01-5600 107.16 

01-5899 191.77 1.94 

SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH          DEPARTMENT 01-551001/30/201300078181 289.50 

SIERRA COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER 01-581201/30/201300078182 379.04 

ALHAMBRA 01-430001/30/201300078183 15.80 

01-5600 15.80 

01-5899 42.13 10.53 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430001/30/201300078184 260.14 

01-5890 83.09 

01-5899 416.53 73.30 

SIERRAVILLE SERVICE &         COUNTRY 

STORE

01-430001/30/201300078185 11.60 

01-5899 15.46 3.86 

SMALL SCHOOL DIST. ASSN. 01-530001/30/201300078186 600.00 

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 29 2013 

11:35AM

006 - Sierra-Plumas Jnt Unif Schl Dist

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 01/01/2013 through 01/31/2013

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-430001/30/201300078187 67.94 

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 13-863401/30/201300078188 26.00 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE         ACCOUNTING 

OFFICE

01-589001/30/201300078189 32.00 

CDE, CASHIER'S OFFICE 13-470001/30/201300078190 176.80 

STENCILS ONLINE, LLC 01-430001/30/201300078191 616.01 

SUBURBAN PROPANE 01-554001/30/201300078192 9,564.87 

01-5899 10,491.48 926.61 

TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-589001/30/201300078193 106.00 

U.S. BANK 01-430001/30/201300078194 237.72 

VERIZON WIRELESS 01-591001/30/201300078195 227.77 

WAYNE  WHITE                  WHITE'S BUS 01-589001/30/201300078196 2,768.00 

ALLEN WRIGHT 01-520001/30/201300078197 21.19 

151,913.16 Total Number of Checks 76 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 66 92,135.13 01

Cafeteria Fund 12 2,799.14 13

Warrant/Pass Though (payroll) 1 56,989.98 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 151,924.25 

11.09-

151,913.16 

76 

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jan 29 2013 

11:35AM

006 - Sierra-Plumas Jnt Unif Schl Dist

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



CRMGROUP 

CONSTRUCTION RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 


D. KEVIN NOLEN 

710-400 SUNNYSIDE RD. JANESVILLE, CA 96114 


TEL: 530-260-3009 KEYlN@CRMGROUPCACOM (LOWERCASE) 


Exhibit A-3 

Contract for Professional Services 


SCOPE 
Provide Construction Management Services at Sierra-Plumas Unified School District for the 
project design development, State agency application process, pre-construction , and 
construction phases of the Re-Roof Project at Loyalton High School. Project based on the 
estimated construction costs of $1,083,532. Fee structure will begin as described below: 

SCHEDULE OF FEES 

Professional Services 

Construction Costs: ... .. ... . ... ... ........ . .... .. ..... . ................ .... .. ... $1 ,083,532.00 


Construction Management: 
Pre-Construction Services @ 3.0% (- $5,000 credit & Final) ..... $23,088.00 
Construction Services @ 2.0% (- $5,000 credit) ......... .... ..... ... $16,671.00 

Fee Schedule: 

Pre-Construction Services @ $3,848.00/mo ... 1/25/1 3 - 6/25/1 3 
Construction Services @ $2,778.50/mo... ... ..7/25/13 - 12/25/13 
Final Payment upon CQ!!!Pletion .. .. .. . $4,418.00 

CRM Group / Construction Resource Management 
710-400 Sunnyside Rd. /Janesville, CA 9611 4 / (530) 260-3009 / 
E-mail: kevin@crmgroupca.com 

mailto:kevin@crmgroupca.com
http:4,418.00
http:16,671.00
http:23,088.00
http:083,532.00


Contract For Professional Services (cont.): 

Notes: 
1. 	 This estimate is based on management of: replacement of the Existing Roof with a new 

Roof System as per design by Nichols, Melburg, & Rossetto Architects. 
2. 	 Fees are based on a Lease/Lease-back contract delivery method with project completion 

including closeout by December, 2013. 
3. 	 Fees are subject to change according to delays beyond my control, final scope and 

construction costs including economy-of-scale that may result in a much smaller project 
and therefore, the possibility of a larger fee. Increases to the project construction costs 
shall require increase to this agreement at current fee structure (percentage). 

4. 	 Invoices for services to be paid by the 25th of each month as billed for services. 
5. 	 Final Payment (10%) to be withheld until Notice of Completion is filed. 

Approval: 	 Acceptance for CRM Group: 

8y: ______________________ BY: @; 
Title: ____________ Title: o-&4wetL 

Project Address: _________ Date: 
L 
V-y,'3t 

Date: ______ 

This cost estimate shall be valid for a period of 30 days after date of issue. 

SPJUSD: Estimate for Construction Management Services (LLB) @ Loyalton High School (Re-Roof Project) 

CRM Group / Construction Resource Management 
710-400 Sunnyside Rd. /Janesville, CA 96 114 / (530) 260-3009 / 
E-mail: kevin@Crmgroupca.com 

mailto:kevin@Crmgroupca.com




















Page 1 of 2
Parent/Student/School Involvement Compact

LOYALTON HIGH SCHOOL
TITLE I

PARENT/STUDENT/SCHOOL COMPACT

Loyalton High School and the parents of the students participating in activities, services,
and programs funded by Title I, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
(ESEA) (participating children), agree that this compact outlines how the parents, the
entire school staff, and the students will share the responsibility for improved student
academic achievement and the means by which the school and parents will build and

develop a partnership that will help children achieve the State’s high standards.

This school-parent compact is in effect during school year 2012-2013.

School Responsibilities

Loyalton High School will:

1. Provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a supportive and effective
learning environment that enables the participating students to meet the State’s
student academic achievement standards.

2. Hold four-year planning conferences each spring where this compact will be
discussed as it relates to student achievement.

3. Provide parents with reports on student progress each quarter and each mid-quarter.

4. Provide parents reasonable access to staff.  When parents want to schedule time
with a staff member, they may call the school office and speak to the office staff or
ask to transfer to the staff member’s extension.  Parents may also request Student
Success Team meetings that include all of the student’s teachers and support
personnel.

5. Provide parents opportunities to volunteer and participate in their child’s class, and
to observe classroom activities.

6. Involve parents in the planning, review, and improvement of the school’s parental
involvement policy through the School Site Council at a fall meeting each year.

7. Involve parents in the joint development of any school wide program plan, in an
organized, ongoing, and timely way.

8. Inform parents of the school’s participation in Title I, Part A programs each year at
Back-to-School Night, and explain the Title I, Part A requirements, and the right of



Page 2 of 2
Parent/Student/School Involvement Compact

parents to be involved in Title I, Part A programs.  All parents will be invited to
participate.

9. On the request of parents, provide opportunities for regular meetings for parents to
formulate suggestions, and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions about the
education of their children.

Parent Responsibilities

We, as parents, will support our children’s learning in the following ways:

1. Monitoring school attendance.

2. Making sure homework is completed.

3. Monitoring amount of television my students watch.
4. Participating in decisions relating to my student’s education.

5. Promoting positive use of my student’s extracurricular time.

6. Staying informed about my child’s education and communicating with the school
by promptly reading all notices from the school or the school district either received
by my child or by mail and responding, as appropriate.

Student Responsibilities

I, as a Loyalton High School student, will share the responsibility to improve my
academic achievement and achieve the State’s high standards.  Specifically, I will:

1. Do my homework every day and ask for help when I need to.

2. Read at least 30 minutes every day outside of school time (may include reading
textbooks).

3. Give to my parents or the adult who is responsible for my welfare all notices and
information received by me from my school every day.



Single Plan for Student Achievement 1 

The Single Plan for Student Achievement 
 
 
 

LOYALTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
 
 

46-70177-6050629 
 __ __ __ __ __ __ __ 

CDS Code 

 
 

 
 

Date of this revision: January, 2013 
 
 

The Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a plan of actions to raise the academic 
performance of all students to the level of performance goals established under the California 
Academic Performance Index. California Education Code sections 41507, 41572, and 64001 
and the federal No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB) require each school to consolidate all school 
plans for programs funded through the SBX3 4 Flexibility,  the Consolidated Application, and 
NCLB Program Improvement into the Single Plan for Student Achievement.  
 
For additional information on school programs and how you may become involved locally, 
please contact the following person: 
  
 

Contact Person: Derek Cooper  
 

Position:  Principal 
 

Telephone Number:  530-993-4482 
 

Address:  P.O. Box 127, 111 Beckwith, Loyalton, CA, 96118 
 

E-mail Address:  dcooper@spjusd.org 
 
 
 

Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District  
 
 

The District Governing Board approved this revision of the School Plan on ____________. 
 
 
 
 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 
Executive Summary 

 

 
 
School:  Loyalton Elementary School 
 
Number of Students:  166 
 
Number of Teachers: 7 classrooms 
 
1.  School-Wide focus areas  
 

 English/Language Arts 

 Mathematics Proficiency 
 
2.  School profile highlights- 
 

 Edusoft Data Analysis Program 

 Study Island Standards Based Intervention Program 

 Widespread use of Accelerated Reader Comprehension Assessment  

 Class size reduction K-3 

 Title 1 support 

 Classroom Aides 

 On-going monitoring by teachers and principal 

 Parent Club that is growing in membership and funds available 

 Parent Club paid field trips 

  Growing community involvement 

 2011 school wide music program 
 
 

       Barriers 
  
    •    Lack of community resources due to rural isolation 

     •    Limited ability to facilitate parental involvement in their students  
   academic endeavors 
     •    Lack of funding for transportation for students participating               
   in after school programs 



     •    Limited ability to procure necessary staff to open the campus on           
   Saturdays and evenings. 
     •    Lack of Resources of to meet the needs of growing EL                   

population. 
     •    Difficulty keeping pace with technology needs. 
     •    Lack of professional development opportunities that are nearby  
   that address CA teaching standards, curriculum and locally          
   specific problems 
 
Action 
 

 Instructional aides have been hired to assist in all classes.  

 Use funding, and Professional Development Block Grant dollars to 
provide meaningful professional development opportunities. 

 Gradually increase the budget for EL programs to meet the needs of 
a growing EL population.    

 We are exploring the possibility of before school tutoring/homework 
help sessions. 

 Other barriers are socio-economically based and cannot be 
resolved by the site. 

 
 
3.  Overview of data analysis 
 

 Loyalton Elementary School met AYP goals for all subgroups for 
2011-2012.   

 Loyalton Elementary School met our API growth target.  Our API 
grew from 814 to 839.   

 
4.  Goals based on data analysis 
 

 Based on gains students have made as documented in STAR 
assessment data, in both ELA and Math, we will continue the 
interventions listed above. 

 We will also continue to search out opportunities to increase 
funding for technology 

 
 
 



 
 
 

5.  Professional Development 
 

 Professional development will be continued in Edusoft by 
focusing on the instructional use of standards based 
benchmark assessments. 

 BTSA coach has been hired  

 We have joined a consortium for professional development with 
Nevada and Placer counties. 

 
6.  School Leadership  

Focus on student learning 
 
My role is as an instructional leader, and I monitor progress by: 

 Meeting with grade levels in content areas on a regular basis to 
set goals based on instructional data through the PLC. 

 Allocate resources based on data and need 

 Formally evaluate teachers  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Single Plan for Student Achievement 
Loyalton Elementary School 

School Demographics for 2009-2010 
 
 

School Enrollment (CBEDS)            183 
          
 
Percent Economically Disadvantaged (STAR)   56 
  
Percent English Learners (STAR)        7 
 
Percent Ethnicity  
 African American           .5 
 American Indian           .5  
 Asian             0 
 Hispanic           14.2 
 Pacific Islander           0 
 White           78.1 
           
 

Loyalton Elementary School 
Academic Performance Index (API) Growth 

 
 ____________________________________________________ 
   2010  Growth  2011 
   Base  Target  Growth 2011  
   API  for   API  Growth Goal 
   Actual 2010   Actual Actual Met  
 
Schoolwide 814      5     839       31          Yes 
 
Subgroups 
SED                  781          5     848            67       Yes 



 

 
 

Single Plan for Student Achievement 
School Profile 

 
Loyalton Elementary School is located near the communities of Sierraville, Beckwourth, 
Chilcoot, and Vinton.  This school is one of five in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified 
School District.  Loyalton Elementary School first opened in 1967.  
 
The school serves 182 students in kindergarten through sixth grade.  The ethnic make 
up is as follows: 0% African American; 0% Native American, 0% Pacific islander, 18% 
Latino/Hispanic, 74% Caucasian.  
 
Loyalton Elementary staff includes: 1 part-time administrator, 1 school secretary, 9 full 
time regular education teachers, 1 part time special education teacher, 1 part time 
speech therapist, 1 part time preschool teacher, 1 part time library aide, 13 part time 
instructional aides, 2 part-time cooks, 2 kitchen helpers/noon supervisors, 4 noon 
supervisors, 1 custodian, & 1 maintenance person. 
 
All classrooms are self-contained.  Two of the 9 classrooms are combination classes of 
two grade levels K/1 and 2/3. 
 
The learning environment is conducive to a strong academic focus, which is 
accomplished through a clear understanding of the State and District content and 
performance standards for all students.  Regular grade level meetings are held to 
analyze current instructional data plan for improvement. 
 
An aggressive attendance monitoring program has been established district-wide and 
on-site.  Our school secretary monitors attendance daily.  The office staff helps families 
by providing information about available resources, as well as addressing student 
attendance issues with parents and students.  The School Attendance Review Board, 
comprised of school officials and law enforcement, is poised to step in to situations 
where school attendance has become a problem.   
 
The Response to Intervention (RTI) membership is flexible and depends upon the 
needs of the student, but usually includes the parent, teacher, Principal, & Special 
Education teacher.  At RTI meetings, a student’s strengths, weaknesses, and needs are 
written down as specifically as possible and parent input is encouraged.  At this point 
the RTI model is initiated.  An action plan is developed to meet stated needs, with a 
follow-up date to discuss the success of the action plan, and to generate further 
suggestions for intervention if needed.  Student response to intervention is carefully 
monitored.  A student is only referred for Special Education testing when the student is 
not responding adequately to any/all of the interventions suggested by the Student 



Study Team.  When testing is completed, an IEP (Individualized Education Program) 
meeting is held to determine a student’s eligibility and placement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC), a group of parents and staff that meet quarterly, is 
charged with implementing the Single Plan for Student Achievement.  The SSC 
monitors the Single Plan, which ensures that all students have access to the core 
curriculum, that the program of support services is coordinated to minimize duplication 
and eliminate gaps, and to ensure that the school program is responsive to the 
individual needs of each student.  The Single Plan for Student Achievement also 
ensures that the needs of ELL(English Language Learners), educationally 
disadvantaged, GATE(gifted and talented education) and Special Education students 
are addressed along with the training needs of the staff.  Finally, the SSC is charged 
with ensuring that there is ongoing evaluation of the school program. 
 
 
 

1. Alignment of curriculum, instruction and materials to content and 
performance standards: 
 

The district has adopted the state approved curriculum in reading/language arts, math, social 
studies, and science and teachers use those materials to assure that students receive 
instruction in the content areas based on California’s performance standards.  Instruction is 
informed, modified, and differentiated by teachers through the process of grade level teacher 
analysis of student performance on continuous monitoring and benchmark assessments 
through the use of Edusoft Data Analysis software.  All students, K-6, are expected to master 
the grade level standards in order to be promoted to the next grade.  Loyalton Elementary is 
reviewing developed report card to provide parents with a comprehensive tool to track student 
progress for the 2011 school year. 

  
Currently in language arts, we are using state adopted textbooks: Open Court Reading  and 
Great Source Language Arts/Writing program. These texts are comprehensive and are utilized 
by all student groups including special education students and English language learners. In 
mathematics, we are currently using Saxon Math (1994) in grades K through 3.  4-6th Glencoe 
McGraw-Hill.  Houghton Mifflin Social Studies and Harcourt Brace Science are used in grades K 
through five.  Holt Earth Science is used in 6th grade. 

  
These materials were approved by the State Board of Education because they were aligned 
with content standards and frameworks; organized in a sequential way from grade level to grade 
level; contain assessment designed to measure what students know and what they can do; 
provide universal access for all students, and provide instructional planning and support for 
teachers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
2.  Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all 
student groups: 

 
The goal of our instructional program is to ensure access to standards based curriculum and 
instruction so that all students can meet or exceed the standards. All students have equal 
access and opportunity to master grade level standards.  Standards based instructional 
materials are purchased for every student at every grade level, in the core content areas. 
All programs in use have extensive accommodations for meeting the instructional needs of 
special student populations, including English learners, at-risk students, special education 
students, and gifted students. 

  
Students identified with special needs have an Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Each plan is 
written by the IEP team and specifically designed to meet the student’s academic needs. 
Special education teachers use standards based materials to assist each student in meeting his 
or her educational goals. In addition, each child at Loyalton Elementary is mainstreamed into 
the general education setting for at least part of each day. With the support of special education 
personnel, special education students are given the opportunity to access and master grade 
level standards. 

  
English language learners are also incorporated into the mainstreamed classroom. All teachers 
on site have received either their BCLAD, CLAD, or SDAIE training to receive their certification. 
Teachers use standards based materials and SDAIE instructional strategies in order for these 
students to master the curriculum. Students in need of intensive language instruction have 
access to a part time bilingual aide to assist them in problem areas. 

 
3.  Alignment of staff development to standards, assessed student performance         
and professional needs: 
 
Student achievement and staff needs are evaluated yearly The district utilizes a number of staff 
development days authorized by the state each year to provide staff development opportunities 
in the following areas: 

•          Alignment and development of benchmark assessments with the Edusoft data 
analysis program, that better assess student progress on state standards.  

 •          Technology training 

 •          Strategies and techniques for teaching diverse student populations 

 •          Training in the content areas 

 •          Classroom Management 
 •          Arts Integration into the curriculum 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 4.   Services provided by the regular program to enable underperforming 
students to meet standards:  

 
All teachers implement the standards-based instructional materials described above.  The 
district-adopted materials address the needs of diverse learners, including underperforming 
students.  During initial instruction, teachers use the explicit instructional strategies and 
techniques built into the programs to address the needs of these students.  Teachers 
additionally use the components of the programs designed as stand-alone intervention tools for 
at-risk students.  Specifically, teachers use the Open Court Intervention Guide and student 
materials to address the needs of students performing below grade level.  Teachers are using 
the Open Court English Language Development Guide and student materials that support 
English learners’ acquisition of English as a second language as well. Our Title I instructor 
provides support and assistance to students in grades K-6.   
 
RTI meetings are held once a month to collaboratively find ways to help under performing 
students meet the state standards. The team includes the classroom teachers, a special 
education teacher, parents, and the Principal or designee. As a result of these meetings, 
students can be referred for testing for special education services, counseling, and/or tutoring. A 
plan is developed to assist the regular education teacher meet the need of under-performing 
students in the classroom. 
 

5. Services provided by categorical funds to enable underperforming students to 
meet standards: 
 
Two of our classrooms are combination classes.  In order to enable the teacher to work 
effectively with each grade level and the diverse needs of students at that grade level,  the staff 
feels that an aide is necessary.  We use a sizeable portion of our categorical funding to support 
instructional aide time in the classroom.  These instructional assistants work directly with low 
achieving and underperforming students in the classroom under the direct supervision of 
credentialed teachers. To comply with NCLB, several of our instructional aides have returned to 
college to complete a course of higher education on their own time. Title 1 funds are spent on 
personnel who work directly with underperforming students. 
 
Staff Development opportunities for teachers and support staff in Reading/Language Arts, Math 
and Science are provided to support the best practices in instruction. Funding is allocated to 
provide adequate technology training, learning, support and materials to provide all students 
access.  Funding is allocated to provide students with supplementary materials and tools for 
learning, including books, calculators, parent communications, and handouts that support 
learning.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

6.  Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student 
achievement: 
 
Both state and local assessments are used to drive instruction and to address individual student 
gaps in academic performance.  Each year, principals analyze state assessment results with 
teachers and include the analysis and action to be taken in their annual report to the Board of 
Education on student achievement.  Site categorical resources target supplemental 
interventions to improve student performance.  Teachers use state and local assessments to 
determine at-risk status of students, develop interventions and determine promotion and 
retention.  The district is also in the process of creating benchmarks exams in the core areas to 
be administered three times a year.  Teachers also administer end-of-unit reading and math 
assessments to all students with diagnostic/prescriptive assessments for at-risk and potentially 
at-risk students. 
 
Teachers meet by grade level with the site administrator to discuss results, share best practices, 
modify instruction, and determine interventions to implement for specific students.  Principals 
monitor effective implementation of standards-based programs and progress of students 
through observation, meeting and databasing student progress. 
 

7.  Number and percentage of teachers in academic areas experiencing low 
student performance: 
 
All students are distributed into classrooms to achieve a balance of high, medium, and low 
abilities. As a result, every teacher (100%) works with children who are underperforming.  
During a portion of the reading/language arts period, time is dedicated to grouping students by 
performance level to provide targeted instruction in skill areas at all performance levels. 
Through the use of CST scores, local assessment and informal and formal testing in the 
classroom, teachers evaluate the data and plan lessons to challenge those students with 
average to high abilities and remediate those who are struggling. 

 
8.  Family, school, district and community resources available to assist these 
students: 
 
The Family Resource Center offers classes in parenting to assist parents in how to best meet 
the needs of family members running on very busy schedules. 
 
First Five California has funded a part time transition aide to assist preschool children in the 
making the move from preschool to the school system. 
 
Sierra County’s Mental Health Department offers support for children (teachers and parents as 
well) whose behaviors impact their academic performance. 
 
Students in the upper grades who are struggling may get help from the site Title 1 instructional 
aide during lunch hour.  
 
 
 



 
 
 

9.  School, district and community barriers to improvements in student     
achievement: 

Many people who move to Loyalton come here from out of state.  This causes some difficulty      
because of the inconsistencies in reading and math programs to which those students have 
been exposed.   

 
Loyalton Elementary School serves a population of students and their families from an area that 
is socio-economically depressed.   At times, over 60% of our students receive free and reduced 
lunches. As a result, our school faces the typical barriers associated with high poverty rates: 
lack of parental involvement, lack of health care and mental health care services, absenteeism, 
child abuse and neglect, family instability and violence.  
 
Transportation is another barrier to student achievement.  Approximately two-thirds of our 
students ride the bus to and from school.  We have tried to have before and after school 
intervention programs but attendance is poor because of the transportation issue. 

 

 
 
10.   Limitations of the current program to enable underperforming students to 
meet standards: 
 
•           Lack of community resources due to rural isolation 
  

•           Limited ability to facilitate parental involvement in students’ academic endeavors 
   

•           Lack of funding to provide transportation for students participating in after school 
 programs. 
  

•           Lack of exposure to preliminary vocational education opportunities to motivate students 
 not on college prep track 
  

•           Lack of funding to hire necessary staff to open the campus and resources on Saturdays 
 and evenings. 
 
•           Lack of sufficient funding and staff to meet the growing needs of EL student 
 
•           Lack of professional development opportunities that are nearby that address CA 
 standards, curriculum and locally specific problems 
 
 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 12  

 

Single Plan for Student Achievement 
 

 

Planned Improvement in Student Achievement 

 
The content of this school plan is aligned with school goals for improving student 
achievement.  School goals are based upon analysis of verifiable state data, including 
the Academic Performance Index and the English Language Development test, including 
local measures of student achievement.  The school site council analyzes available data 
on the academic performance of all students, including English Learners, economically 
disadvantaged students, gifted and talented students, and students with exceptional 
needs.  The council also obtains and considers input from the school community.  Based 
on these analyses, the council has established the following performance improvement 
goals. 

 

Goal:  ENGLISH/LANGUAGE ARTS 

 
Goal Statement 

To increase the school wide percentage of students scoring “proficient” or “advanced” by 
5 percent as measured on the 2011 California Standards Test in English/Language Arts.   

 

Student Group 

School wide 

 

Performance Gains 

The school wide percentage scoring ”proficient” or higher will increase from 55% (May 
2011) to 60%  (May 2012) 

 

Means of Evaluating 

Annual state assessments (CST) 

Report card data 

Other local assessments (Study Island, Edusoft Benchmarks) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 13  

 

Goal:  ENGLISH/LANGUAGE ARTS 
 

Goal Statement 

To increase the percentage of English Language Learners scoring “proficient” or 
advanced by 5 percent as measured on the 2012 California Standards Test in 
English/language arts. 

 

Student Group 

English Learners 

 

Performance Gains 

The percentage of EL students scoring “proficient” or higher will increase from 56%  
(May 2011) to  60% (May 2012). 

 

Means of Evaluating 

Annual state assessments (CST) 

Report card data 

Other local assessments (STAR reading, Edusoft Benchmark assessments) 

 

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice  

 

School wide instructional assistants 
Means of Achievement:  Increased educational opportunity 

 Tasks:  Provide students (Grades K-6) in need of small group or one to one 
 support in reading/language arts intervention under the direction of the classroom 
 teacher. 

 

 Measures: Daily schedules, ongoing classroom monitoring 

 

 Number of People assigned: 8  

 

 Start Date:  8/30/10 

 

 End Date:  6/10/11 

 

Funding Source  Related Expenditure   Estimated Costs 

 Title 1    Hourly Personnel   $26,000 

 SBX3-4   Hourly Personnel   $19,500 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 14  

 

School Librarian 
 

 Tasks:  Provide library/media experiences for elementary and middle school   
 students. 

 

 Measures:  Daily schedules, classified evaluation tool 

 

 Number of People assigned: 1 

 

 Start date: 8/30/10 

 

 End date:  6/10/11 

 

 Funding Source  Related Expenditure  Estimated Costs 

 SBX3-4   Hourly wage    $12,000 

 

Library Books & other Media 
 Means of Achievement:  Improvement of instructional strategies and materials 

   

  Tasks:  Purchase high-interest titles to enhance the library collection of  
  books,  books on tape, CDs/CDR and video. 

 

  Measures:  Availability of books and media for checkout. 

 

  Personnel assigned: Library technician 

 

  Start Date:  8/30/10 

 

  End Date:  6/10/11 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditure  Estimated Costs 

SBX3-4    Library Books, media   $ 2,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 15  

 

Professional Development 
Means of Achievement:  Staff development and professional collaboration 

 

 Tasks:  Provide professional development opportunities to teachers in the areas 
 of reading/language arts and opportunities to collaborate around student 
 assessment and instructions. 

 Measures:  CST, Benchmark exams, 

 People Assigned:  Principal 

 Start Date:  8/30/10 

 End Date:  6/10/11 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditures Estimated Costs 

Title II     Registration Fees and Stipends $ 3,000.00 

SBX3-4    Registration Fees/ Substitutes  $ 1,000.00 

 

 

GOAL:  ENGLISH LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT 

Goal Statement 
 To increase the proficiency levels of all English Learner students by one level as 
 measured on the 2011 CELDT 

 

Student Group 
 English Learners 

Performance Gains 
 All English Learners will gain one proficiency level annually. 

Means of Evaluating 
 CELDT 

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice 

Means of Achievement: Increased educational opportunity 

 Task:  Provide supplemental instruction to EL students 

 Measures:  CELDT, CST ELA, ongoing classroom monitoring 

People assigned:  EIA/ELL instructional aide, all classroom instructional 
staff/aides 

 

 Start Date:  8/30/10 

 

 End Date:  6/10/11 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditures Estimated Costs 

EIA-ELL    Hourly Wage    $ 4,600.00 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 16  

 

GOAL:  MATHEMATICS 

 

Goal Statement 
 To increase the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced by 5 
 percent as measured on the 2011 CST in mathematics 

 

Student Group 
 School-wide 

 Socio-economically disadvantaged 

 English Learner 

 

Performance Gains 
 The percentage of students scoring proficient or higher (school-wide) will 
 increase from 56% (May 2010) to 60% (May 2011) 

 

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice 

 

 

School wide instructional assistants 
Means of Achievement:  Increased educational opportunity 

 Tasks:  Provide students (Grades K-6) in need of small group or one-to-one 
 support in mathematics intervention under the direction of the classroom 
 teacher. 

 

 Measures: Daily schedules, ongoing classroom monitoring 

 

 Number of People assigned: 9 

 

 Start Date:  8/31/09 

 

 End Date:  6/11/10 

 

Funding Source  Related Expenditure   Estimated Costs 

 Title 1    Hourly Personnel   $  4,700 

 SBX3-4   Hourly Personnel   $19,200 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 17  

 

GOAL:  FINE ARTS, SOCIAL STUDIES, & SCIENCE 
Goal Statement:  To increase student awareness of differences in cultures, 
music and ecosystems of the world. 

Means of Achievement:  Increased educational opportunity via interdisciplinary 
approach in the classroom 

Tasks:  Provide students with experience in various genres of art instruction, 
introduction to musical instruments, choral programs 

  

Measures: informal teacher assessment 

 

 People assigned:  staff, artists in residence, Music teacher 

 

 Start Date:  8/30/10 

 Music Start Date: 1/1/11 

 

 End Date:  6/10/11 

 

 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditure        Estimated Costs 

Parents Club (GCPC)    Personnel             $    4,600.00 

SBX3-4    sub time                        $    1,000.00 

SBX 3 4     materials   $    1,000.00 
   

 

GOAL:  SCHOOL CULTURE 

Goal Statement: To increase student attendance as measured by a decrease in the 

number of absences and discipline referrals. 

 Means of Achievement:  Increased educational opportunities. 

 Tasks:  Provide students with experiences that increase their love of learning, joy 
 of discovery and sense of wonder with the world around them. 

 Measures:  informal assessments by staff 

 People assigned:  staff 

 Start Date:  8/30/10 

 End Date:  6/10/11 

Funding Source  Related Expenditure    Estimated Costs 

SBX3-4 Instructional supplies, equipment   $ 2,000.00 

 Technology, Media, repairs/upgrade 

 Existing equipment. 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 18  

 

Program Specialist 
Means of Achievement:  Improvement of instructional strategies by exposing students 
to fine arts. 

 

 Tasks:  Provide art instruction to K-6 students. 

 

 Measures:  Daily schedules, classified evaluation tool, production for art show. 

 

 Number of People assigned: 1 

 

 Start Date:  8/30/10 

 

 End Date:  6/10/11 

 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditure  Estimated Costs 

SBX3-4   Hourly Compensation   $10,700.00 

 

Categorical Funding Allocated to this School 

 

The following state and federal categorical funds were allocated to this school 
through the Consolidated Application, Part II.  Additional funds (listed under 
“Other”) may be allocated to the school in accordance with district policy. 

 

STATE PROGRAMS 

SBX3-4                                Amount:  $49,200   

Purpose:  Improve school response to educational, personal, and career needs 
of all students 

 

 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

Elementary and Secondary Education Act: 

(3010)Title 1: School-wide Program   Amount: $          25,146 

Purpose:  To ensure that all children have a fair, equal, and significant 
opportunity to obtain a high-quality education, and reach minimum  

proficiency on the state content standards and assessments. 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 19  

 

(7091)EIA-ELL:                 Amount:  $            5,446 

Purpose:  To increase academic achievement by providing specific instructional 
services to students from families who may be economically impacted or English 
Language Learners and to develop fluency in English and academic proficiency  

of English learners. 

 

 

Title II:  Teacher Quality            Amount: $         3,000 

Purpose: To increase academic achievement by improving teacher and principal 
quality. 

 

Title VI:  Innovative Strategies           Amount:  $          424 

Purpose:  To increase student exposure to the world around them via distance 
learning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 20  

 

School Site Council Membership 

 

Education Code Section 64001(g) requires that the SPSA be reviewed and updated at 
least annually, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the through the 
Consolidated Application, by the school site council. The current make-up of the school 

site council is as follows:
1
 

 
 

 
 

Names of Members 

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 

C
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 

T
e
a
c
h
e
r 

O
th

e
r 

S
c
h

o
o
l 

S
ta

ff
 

P
a
re

n
t 
o
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

S
e
c
o
n

d
a
ry

 

S
tu

d
e
n
t 

Derek Cooper X     

Juli Lane  X    

Gina Parker  X    

Heidi Brook    X  

Liz Hensen    X  

Diane Bruns    X  

Lenny Garcia   X   

Sarah Marsh    X  

      

      

      

      

 Numbers of members of each category 1 2 1 4  

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
1
  At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) 

the principal, classroom teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students 
attending the school or other community members. Classroom teachers must comprise a 
majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must be, in 
addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and 
students. Members must be selected by their peer group. 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 21  

 

Recommendations and Assurances 

 

The school site council recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the 
district governing board for approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
1. The school site council is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with 

district governing board policy and state law. 
 
2. The school site council reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district 

governing board policies, including those board policies relating to material changes 
in the school plan requiring board approval. 
 

3. The school site council sought and considered all recommendations from the 
following groups or committees before adopting this plan (Check those that apply): 
 
___ School Advisory Committee for State Compensatory Education Programs 
 
___ English Learner Advisory Committee 
 
___ Community Advisory Committee for Special Education Programs 
 
___ Gifted and Talented Education Program Advisory Committee 
 
___ Other (list) 
 
 

4. The school site council reviewed the content requirements for school plans of 
programs included in this Single Plan for Student Achievement and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing 
board policies and in the LEA Plan. 
 

5. This school plan is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. 
The actions proposed herein form a sound, comprehensive, coordinated plan to 
reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance.  
 

6. This school plan was adopted by the school site council at a public meeting on: 
_______. 

 
 
Attested: 
 
 

___Derek Cooper____________  _______________________            ____ 
Typed name of school principal  Signature of school principal  Date 
 
 
__________________________  _______________________            ____ 
Typed name of SSC chairperson  Signature of SSC chairperson Date 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 22  

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 1 

The Single Plan for Student Achievement 
 
 
 

LOYALTON MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 
 
 

46-70177-6089650 
 __ __ __ __ __ __ __ 

CDS Code 

 
 

 
 

Date of this revision: January 2013 
 
 

The Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a plan of actions to raise the academic 
performance of all students to the level of performance goals established under the California 
Academic Performance Index. California Education Code sections 41507, 41572, and 64001 
and the federal No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB) require each school to consolidate all school 
plans for programs funded through SBX3 4, the Consolidated Application, and NCLB Program 
Improvement into the Single Plan for Student Achievement.  
 
For additional information on school programs and how you may become involved locally, 
please contact the following person: 
  
 

Contact Person: Derek Cooper  
 

Position:  Principal 
 

Telephone Number:  530-993-4186, 530-993-4482 
 

Address:  P.O. Box 5, 107 Beckwith, Loyalton, CA, 96118 
 

E-mail Address:  dcooper@spjusd.org 
 
 
 

Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District  
 
 

The District Governing Board approved this revision of the School Plan on ____________. 
 
 
 
 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 
Executive Summary 

 

 
 
School:  Loyalton Middle School 
 
Number of Students:  53 
 
Number of Teachers: 3 teachers at LMS 
 
1.  School-Wide focus areas (3 maximum) 
 

 English/Language Arts 

 Mathematics Proficiency 

 Technology  
 
2.  School profile highlights- 
 

 Study Island Standards Based Intervention Program 

 PowerSchool website allows parent access to student grades and 
attendance. 

 Math intervention program 

 Active Associated Student Body that funds activities and trips. 

 Participation in local volleyball and basketball leagues 

 Lunch time activities & weekly/monthly/yearlong Olympic 
competitions foster school pride and team spirit 

 Ipad lab 

 On-going monitoring by teacher and principal 

 Parents club (Sports club/GCPC) that is growing in membership and 
funds available 

 Strong community involvement for sports related activities 

 MathScore standards based math intervention program 

 Why Try intervention available as an elective/behavioral program 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       Barriers 
  
 •  Lack of community resources due to rural isolation 
  •  Limited ability to facilitate parental involvement in their students  
    academic endeavors 
  •  Lack of funding to provide transportation for students participating        
    in after school programs 

 •     Lack of varied vocational education opportunities for student  
       motivation. 
 •     Lack of funding to hire necessary staff to open the campus on    
       Saturdays and evenings for intervention and remediation 
 •     Lack of professional development opportunities that are nearby  
       and address CA teaching standards, curriculum and locally         
       specific problems 
 
 Actions 
 

 Continue to utilize Title I, EIA funding and state funding to provide 
meaningful professional development opportunities. 

 Increased use of PowerSchool program is gaining support from 
parents and teachers and is helping to close the communication 
gap between school and parents. 

 Use MathScore data to guide math remediation 

 Increase the budget for EL programs to meet the needs of a 
growing EL population 

 Continue to work to overcome socio-economically based barriers 
that cause problems at the site. 

 
3.  Overview of data analysis 

 
2012 Growth API is not reported for this school because there was a decrease of 
more than 20 percent of students continuously enrolled from the 2011 Base API 
to the 2012 Growth API or the LEA reported a potential data error in this area. 

 
4.  Goals based on data analysis 
 

 Based on STAR assessment data, in both ELA and Math, we 
will continue the interventions listed above and we will continue 
to look for funding opportunities to increase interventions. 



 We will also continue to search out opportunities to increase 
funding for technology 

 
 
5.  Professional Development 
 

 Professional development will be highlighting the use of 
standards based benchmark assessments to drive instruction.   

 We have joined a consortium for professional development with 
Nevada and Placer counties. 

 Ipad and computer training 
 
6.  School Leadership  

Focus on student learning 
 
My role is as an instructional leader, and I monitor progress by: 
 

 Meeting with grade levels in content areas on a regular basis to 
set goals based on instructional data through the PLC. 

 Allocate resources based on data and need 

 Formally evaluate teachers  

 Join the nearby counties in a consortium for professional 
development. 

 Attend Curriculum and Instruction meetings in nearby counties, 
Placer, Nevada and Sacramento. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Single Plan for Student Achievement 
 

Loyalton Middle School 
School Demographics for 2008-2009 

 
 

School Enrollment (CBEDS)                53 
   
 
Percent Economically Disadvantaged (STAR)     56 
 
Percent English Learners (STAR)          6 
        
 
Percent Ethnicity (STAR) 
 African American            0 
 American Indian            0  
 Asian              0 
 Hispanic            15 
 White            79 
 
 

Loyalton Middle School 
Academic Performance Index (API) Growth 

____________________________________________________ 
   2011  Growth  2011 
   Base  Target  Growth 2010-11  
   API  for   API  Growth    Goal 
   Actual 10-11          Actual Actual Met  
 
Schoolwide 767  5          N/A                                 N/A 
 
Subgroups           Not numerically significant 
 
White  779           5              N/A                      N/A 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 
School Profile 

 
Loyalton Middle School is located near the communities of Sierraville, Beckwourth, 
Chilcoot, and Vinton.  This school is one of five in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified 
School District.  Loyalton Middle School first opened in 1967.  
 
The school serves 53 students in seventh through eighth grade.  The ethnic make up is 
as follows: 0% African American; 2% Native American, 0% Asian, 15% Latino/Hispanic, 
79% Caucasian.  
 
Loyalton Middle staff includes: 1 part-time administrator, 1 part-time school secretary, 2 
full time regular education teachers, 1 full time Opportunity Class teacher, We have also 
implemented a teacher from the High School teach a Career Tech elective for one 
period a day for the 2012/2013 school year. We have also contracted a part-time Music 
teacher through the Sierra Arts Council. 1 part -time special education teacher, 1 part- 
time speech therapist, 2 instructional aides, 1 EIA aide for intervention, 1 part-time 
librarian, 1 custodian/maintenance person.  The Opportunity class is self-contained. The 
learning environment is conducive to a strong academic focus, which is accomplished 
through a clear understanding of the State and District content and performance 
standards for all students.  Regular grade level meetings are held to analyze current 
instructional data plan for improvement. 
 
An aggressive attendance monitoring program has been established district-wide and 
on-site.  Our school secretary monitors attendance daily.  The office staff helps families 
by providing information about available resources, as well as addressing student 
attendance issues with parents and students.  The School Attendance Review Board, 
comprised of school officials and law enforcement, are poised to step in to situations 
where school attendance has become a problem.   
 
The Response to intervention (RTI) membership is flexible and depends upon the 
needs of the student, but usually includes the parent, teacher, Principal, & Special 
Education teacher.  We have adopted the “Response to Intervention” model to assist 
struggling students.   At RTI meetings, a student’s strengths, weaknesses, and needs 
are written down as specifically as possible and parent input is encouraged.  At these 
meetings an action plan is developed to meet stated needs, with a follow-up date to 
discuss the success of the action plan, and to generate further suggestions for 
intervention if needed.  For students still not being successful, even with classroom 
modifications, the RTI/SST can recommend special education testing when necessary 
and appropriate.  When testing is completed, an IEP (Individualized Education Program) 
meeting is held to determine a student’s eligibility and placement. 
 
The School Site Council (SSC), a group of parents and staff that meet quarterly, is 
charged with implementing the Single Plan for Student Achievement.  The SSC 
monitors the Single Plan, which ensures that all students have access to the core 



curriculum, that the program of support services is coordinated to minimize duplication 
and eliminate gaps, and to ensure that the school program is responsive to the 
individual needs of each student.  The single Plan for Student Achievement also 
ensures that the needs of EL(English Language Learners), educationally 
disadvantaged, and Special Education students are addressed along with the training 
needs of the staff.  Finally, the SSC is charged with ensuring that there is ongoing 
evaluation of the school program. 
 
 
 

1. Alignment of curriculum, instruction and materials to content and 
performance standards: 
 

The district has adopted the state approved curriculum in reading/language arts, math, social 
studies, and science and teachers use those materials to assure that students receive 
instruction in the content areas based on California’s performance standards.  Instruction is 
informed, modified, and differentiated by teachers through the process of grade level teacher 
analysis of student performance on continuous monitoring and benchmark assessments 
through the use of Data Analysis software.  All students, grades 7-8, are expected to master the 
grade level standards in order to be promoted to the next grade.  Loyalton Middle School uses 
PowerGrade, a component of PowerSchool to provide parents with a comprehensive tool to 
track student progress.  Student grades and assignments are available on line 24 hours a day. 

  
Currently in language arts, we are using the Elements of Literature program by Holt, Rinehart 
and Winston, in Social Studies, the Houghton Mifflin Series, in Math, the Glencoe pre-Algebra 
and Algebra series and in Science, the Holt Series.  These texts are comprehensive and are 
utilized by all student groups including special education students and English language 
learners. 
 
These materials were approved by the State Board of Education because they were aligned 
with content standards and frameworks; organized in a sequential way from grade level to grade 
level; contain assessment designed to measure what students know and what they can do; 
provide universal access for all students; and provide instructional planning and support for 
teachers. 

 
2. Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all 

student groups: 
 

The goal of our instructional program is to insure access to standards based curriculum and 
instruction so that all students can meet or exceed the standards. All students have equal 
access and opportunity to master grade level standards.  Standards based instructional 
materials are purchased for every student at every grade level, in the core content areas. 
All programs in use have extensive accommodations for meeting the instructional needs of 
special student populations, including English Learners, at-risk students, special education 
students, and gifted students. 

  
Students identified with special needs have an Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Each plan is 
written by the IEP team and specifically designed to meet the student’s academic needs. 
Special education teachers use standards based materials to assist each student in meeting his 



or her educational goals. In addition, each child at Loyalton Middle is mainstreamed into the 
general education setting for at least part of each day. With the support of special education 
personnel, special education students are given the opportunity to access and master grade 
level standards. 

  
English language learners are also incorporated into the mainstreamed classroom. All teachers 
on site have received (or are in the process of receiving) either their BCLAD, CLAD, or SDAIE 
training to receive their certification. Teachers use standards based materials and SDAIE 
instructional strategies in order for these students to master the curriculum. Students in need of 
intensive language instruction have access to a part time bilingual aide to assist them in 
problem areas. 

 
3.  Alignment of staff development to standards, assessed student performance                           
and professional needs: 
 
Student achievement and staff needs are evaluated yearly. The district utilizes a number of staff 
development days authorized by the state each year to provide staff development opportunities 
in the following areas: 
   
             •          Alignment and development of benchmark assessments with the Edusoft                                                                        
  data analysis program, that better assess student progress on state standards.  
 •          Technology training 

 •          Strategies and techniques for teaching diverse student populations 

 •          Training in the content areas 

 •          Classroom Management 
  

4.  Services provided by the regular program to enable underperforming      
students to meet standards:  

 
At Loyalton Middle School, all students participate in a literature comprehension program, 
Accelerated Reader. Students are assessed on their comprehension level for each book they 
read. Students participate in a rigorous English/Language Arts program. Students are exposed 
to expository text as well as literature. All core classes offer lunchtime tutoring for those 
students who are experiencing difficulties.   A Math study skill class is available, as an elective, 
for students who need assistance or time to complete assignments successfully. A credentialed 
teacher and a qualified EIA instructional assistant are in with the students. RTI meetings are 
held to collaboratively find ways to help under-performing students meet the state standards. 
The team includes the classroom teachers, a special education teacher, parents, and the 
Principal. As a result of these meetings, students are often referred for testing for special 
education services, counseling, and tutoring. A plan is developed to assist the regular education 
teacher meet the need of under-performing students in the classroom. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5.    Services provided by categorical funds to enable underperforming students 
to meet standards: 
 
Title 1, McKinney Vento Homeless Education Grant, and SBX 4 block grant funds are spent on 
personnel who work directly with under-performing students.  Intervention in English, Language 
Arts, Social Studies, Mathematics and Science is offered at lunchtime and during study skills 
classes.    
 
 
 

6.  Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student 
achievement: 
 
Both state and local assessments are used to inform instruction and to address individual 
student gaps in academic performance.  Each year, principals analyze state assessment results 
with teachers and include the analysis and action to be taken in their annual report to the Board 
of Education on student achievement.  Site categorical resources target supplemental 
interventions to improve student performance.  Teachers use state and local assessments to 
determine at-risk status of students, develop interventions and determine promotion and 
retention.  The district is also in the process of creating benchmarks exams in the core areas to 
be administered three times a year.  Teachers also administer end-of-unit reading and math 
assessments to all students with diagnostic/prescriptive assessments for at-risk and potentially 
at-risk students. 
 
Teachers meet by grade level with the site administrator to discuss results, share best practices, 
modify instruction, and determine interventions to implement for specific students.  Principals 
monitor effective implementation of standards-based programs and progress of students 
through observation, meeting and data basing student progress. 
 

7.  Number and percentage of teachers in academic areas experiencing low 
student performance: 
 
All students are distributed into classrooms to achieve a balance of high, medium, and low 
abilities. As a result, every teacher (100%) works with children who are underperforming.  
During a portion of the reading/language arts period, time is dedicated to grouping students by 
performance level to provide targeted instruction in skill areas at all performance levels. 
Through the use of CST scores, local assessment and informal and formal testing in the 
classroom, teachers evaluate the data and plan lessons to challenge those students with 
average to high abilities and remediate those who are struggling. 

 
8.  Family, school, district and community resources available to assist these 
students: 
 
The Family Resource Center offers classes in parenting to assist parents in how to best meet 
the needs of family members running on very busy schedules. 
Sierra County Mental Health offers support for children (teachers and parents as well) whose 
behaviors impact their academic performance.  
Lunchtime tutoring: Teachers frequently offer a quiet classroom where students may complete 
homework and get assistance if necessary.  
Study Skills classes available as electives 



9.    School, district and community barriers to improvements in student 
achievement: 

   
   Some of the more transient populations have difficulty because of inconsistencies in reading 

and math programs to which they have been exposed. 
 
Loyalton Middle School serves a population of students and their families from an area that is 
socio-economically depressed. At times, over 50% of our students receive free and reduced 
lunches. As a result, our school faces the typical barriers associated with high poverty rates: 
lack of parental involvement, lack of health care and mental health care services, absenteeism, 
child abuse and neglect, family instability and violence. Because nearly 2/3 of our students ride 
the bus and there is no funding for a “late run” it is almost impossible to provide after school 
remediation or intervention to the majority of students. 
 
 

 10.   Limitations of the current program to enable underperforming students to  
meet standards: 
 
•           Lack of community resources due to rural isolation 
  

•           Limited ability to facilitate parental involvement in their students academic endeavors  
  

•           Lack of funding to provide transportation for students participating in after school 
 programs. 
  

•           Lack of vocational education opportunities to motivate students not on college prep track 
  

•           Lack of funding to hire necessary staff to open the campus and resources on Saturdays 
 and evenings. 
 
•          Lack of professional development opportunities that are nearby and address CA 
 standards, curriculum and locally specific problems 
 
 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 11  

 

Single Plan for Student Achievement 
 

Planned Improvement in Student Achievement 

 
The content of this school plan is aligned with school goals for improving student 
achievement.  School goals are based upon analysis of verifiable state data, including 
the Academic Performance Index and the English Language Development test, including 
local measures of student achievement.  The school site council analyzed available data 
on the academic performance of all students, including English Learners, economically 
disadvantaged students, gifted and talented students, and students with exceptional 
needs.  The council also obtained and considered input from the school community.  
Based on these analyses, the council has established the following performance 
improvement goals. 

 

 

Goal:  ENGLISH/LANGUAGE ARTS 

 
Goal Statement 

To increase the percentage, school wide, of students proficient or advanced by 5 
percent as measured on the 2012 California Standards Test in English/Language Arts.   

 

Student Group 

School wide 

 

Performance Gains 

The school wide percentage scoring proficient or higher will increase from 54% (May 
2012) to  59%  (May 2013) 

 

Means of Evaluating 

Annual state assessments (CST) 

Report card data 

Other local assessments (Benchmarks) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 12  

 

Goal:  ENGLISH/LANGUAGE ARTS 
 

Goal Statement 

To increase the percentage of English Learners scoring proficient or advanced by 5 
percent as measured on the 2012 California Standards Test in English/language arts. 

 

Student Group 

English Learners 

 

Performance Gains 

No data, too small of a sub group. 

 

Means of Evaluating 

Annual state assessments (CST) 

Report card data 

Other local assessments (Benchmark assessments) 

 

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice  

 

Title I and EIA instructional assistants 
Means of Achievement:  Increased educational opportunity 

 Tasks:  Provide students (Grades 7-8) in need of small group or one-to-one 
 support in reading/language arts intervention under the direction of the classroom 
 teacher. 

 

 Measures: Daily schedules, ongoing classroom monitoring 

 

 People assigned:  instructional aide 

  

 Start Date:  8/27/12 

 

 End Date:  6/7/13 

 

Funding Source  Related Expenditure   Estimated Costs 

Title 1 and EIA   Hourly Personnel   $4900 

 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 13  

 

School Librarian 
 

 Tasks:  Provide library/media experiences for elementary and middle school 
 students. 

 

 Measures:  Daily schedules, classified evaluation tool 

 

 People assigned:  Part time staff 

 

 Start date: 8/27/12 

 

 End date:  6/7/13 

 

 Funding Source  Related Expenditure  Estimated Costs 

 SBX3  4 Flex   Hourly wage     $3,320 

 

Library Books & other Media 
 Means of Achievement:  Improvement of instructional strategies and materials 

   

 Tasks:  Purchase high-interest titles to enhance the library collection of   
 books,  books on tape, and video. 

 

 Measures:  Availability of books and media for checkout. 

 

 Personnel assigned: Library technician 

 

 Start Date:  8/27/11 

 

 End Date:  6/7/12 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditure   Estimated 
Costs 

SBX3 4    Library Books, media   $ 1,620.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 14  

 

 

 

Professional Development 
Means of Achievement:  Staff development and professional collaboration 

 

 Tasks:  Provide professional development opportunities to teachers in the areas 
 of reading/language arts and opportunities to collaborate around student 
 assessment and instructions. 

 Measures:  Improved student performance as evidenced by CST, STAR and 
 local assessments 

 People Assigned: Principal & Staff 

 Start Date:  8/27/12 

 End Date:  6/7/13 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditures Estimated Costs 

Title II     Registration Fees and Stipends $ 2,000.00 

SBX3 4    Registration Fees/ Substitutes  $ 1,000.00 

 

 

GOAL:  ENGLISH LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT 

Goal Statement 
 To increase the proficiency levels of all English Learner students by one level as 
 measured on the 2011 CELDT 

Student Group 
 English Learners 

Performance Gains 
 All English Learners will gain one proficiency level annually. 

Means of Evaluating 
 CELDT 

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice 

Means of Achievement: Increased educational opportunity 

 

 Task:  Provide supplemental instruction to EL students 

 Measures:  CELDT, CST ELA, ongoing classroom monitoring 

 People assigned:  EL instructional aide, classroom teachers 

 Start Date:  8/27/12 

 End Date:  6/7/13 

 

Funding Source   Related Expenditures Estimated Costs 

EIA     as needed    $ 3,000 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 15  

 

GOAL:  MATHEMATICS 

 

Goal Statement 
 To increase the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced by 5 
 percent as measured on the 2012 CST in mathematics 

 

Student Group 
 School-wide 

 Socio-economically disadvantaged 

 English Learner 

 

Performance Gains 
 The percentage of students scoring proficient or higher (school-wide) will 
 increase from 40% (May 2012) to 45% (May 2013) 

 

 

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice 

 

• Implementation of daily timed tests within math classes designed to maintain 
basic math skills throughout the year and identify students that may continue to 
need remediation 
 
• Hired an instructional aide to work within the math class to do immediate one on 
one remediation with students with low performance on daily timed tests 
 
• Implemented the online MathScore curriculum to provide a method for doing 
benchmark assessments through out the year. 
 
• Implemented a twice weekly Math Remediation course for students performing 
at more that one grade level deficit. 15 students have been enrolled in the 
course. During the first 6 months of the year, they have progressed from an 
average grade level of 3.5 up to 5.5. Two students have been fully remediated 
and exited from the program. 
 

• Implemented an iPad class lab on with a one per student ratio for use in math 
and science classes. This gives students access to the MathScore curriculum 
and a number of other apps for increased mathematics and algebra 
comprehension. 

 

 

 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 16  

 

Categorical Funding Allocated to this School 

 

The following state and federal categorical funds were allocated to this school 
through the Consolidated Application, Part II.  Additional funds (listed under 
“Other”) may be allocated to the school in accordance with district policy. 

 

STATE PROGRAMS 

Economic Impact Aid/English Learner Program  Amount:  $  1,000 

Purpose:  Develop fluency in English and academic proficiency of English 
learners 

 

SBX3 4        Amount:    $  7,548 

 

Purpose:  Increase academic achievement.                

 

Purpose:  Improve school response to educational, personal, and career needs 
of all students 

 

Purpose:  To increase academic achievement by improving teacher and principal 
quality. 

 

Purpose:  To increase academic achievement by providing smaller group 
instruction opportunities for students who are experiencing difficulties in core 
subjects. 

 

 

This is the fund where many State Categorical Programs were combined.  The 
district has restricted site use of many of these funds. 

 

FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

Elementary and Secondary Education Act: 

 

Title 1: School-wide Program           Amount: $    6,900 

Purpose:  To ensure that all children have a fair, equal, and significant 
opportunity to obtain a high-quality education, and reach minimum proficiency on 
the state content standards and assessments. 

 

Title II:  Teacher Quality            Amount: $   3,000 

Purpose: To increase academic achievement by improving teacher and principal 
quality. 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 17  

 

 

School Site Council Membership 

 

Education Code Section 64001(g) requires that the SPSA be reviewed and updated at 
least annually, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the through the 
Consolidated Application, by the school site council. The current make-up of the school 

site council is as follows:
1
 

 
 

 
 

Names of Members 

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 

C
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 

T
e
a
c
h
e
r 

O
th

e
r 

S
c
h

o
o
l 

S
ta

ff
 

P
a
re

n
t 
o
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

S
e
c
o
n

d
a
ry

 

S
tu

d
e
n
t 

Derek Cooper X     

Susan Baker  X    

Camille Alfred  X    

Lenny Garcia   X   

Laural Colberg    X  

      

      

 Numbers of members of each category 1 2 1   

      

 
 
Recommendations and Assurances 

 

The school site council recommends this school plan and proposed expenditures to the 
district governing board for approval and assures the board of the following: 
 
1. The school site council is correctly constituted and was formed in accordance with 

district governing board policy and state law. 
 
2. The school site council reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district 

governing board policies, including those board policies relating to material changes 
in the school plan requiring board approval. 
 

                                            
1
  At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) 

the principal, classroom teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students 
attending the school or other community members. Classroom teachers must comprise a 
majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must be, in 
addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and 
students. Members must be selected by their peer group. 



Single Plan for Student Achievement 18  

 

3. The school site council sought and considered all recommendations from the 
following groups or committees before adopting this plan (Check those that apply): 
 
___ School Advisory Committee for State Compensatory Education Programs 
 
___ English Learner Advisory Committee 
 
___ Community Advisory Committee for Special Education Programs 
 
___ Gifted and Talented Education Program Advisory Committee 
 
___ Other (list) 
 
 

4. The school site council reviewed the content requirements for school plans of 
programs included in this Single Plan for Student Achievement and believes all such 
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing 
board policies and in the LEA Plan. 
 

5. This school plan is based on a thorough analysis of student academic performance. 
The actions proposed herein form a sound, comprehensive, coordinated plan to 
reach stated school goals to improve student academic performance.  
 

6. This school plan was adopted by the school site council at a public meeting on: 
_______. 

 
 
Attested: 
 
 

_____Derek Cooper______________________________________      ________ 
Typed name of school principal  Signature of school principal  Date 
 
 
________________________________________________                   ________ 
Typed name of SSC chairperson  Signature of SSC chairperson Date 

 
 



























































SINGLE PLAN FOR STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

AT DOWNIEVILLE SCHOOLS

46-70177-6050611
46-70177-4632303

CDS Codes

Date of this revision: February 2013

The Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a plan of actions to raise the
academic performance of all students to the level of performance goals established under
the California Academic Performance Index. California Education Code sections 41507,
41572, and 64001 and the federal No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB) require each school
to consolidate all school plans for programs funded through the School and Library
Improvement Block Grant, the Pupil Retention Block Grant, the Consolidated
Application, and NCLB Program Improvement into the Single Plan for Student
Achievement.

For additional information on school programs and how you may become involved
locally, please contact the following person:

Contact Person: Derek Cooper

Position: Principal

Telephone Number: 530-289-3473

Address: P.O. Drawer B, Downieville, CA  95936

E-mail address: dcooper@spjusd.org



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
The District Governing Board approved this revision of the School Plan on

February 8, 2011

Single Plan for Student Achievement
Executive Summary

School: Downieville School

Number of Students: 56

Number of Teachers: 5.5

1.  School-wide focus areas (3 Maximum)

 Downieville Elementary
 English Language Arts
 Mathematics Proficiency

2. School profile highlights

 Edusoft Data Analysis Program
 Accelerated Reader
 Opportunity Classroom
 Character Counts
 Small class sizes
 Low student to teacher ratio
 Articulation from grade to grade: K-12
 Persistent, dedicated staff
 Classroom Aides
 On-going monitoring by teachers and principal
 AVID
 Four Year Planning
 Arts in School Program
 Site Council
 Study Island
 Creative/Innovative Curriculum



Barriers

 Small size
 Inability to attract and hire highly qualified teachers
 Limited offering of sections
 Lack of funding to provide additional academic courses and

other extra curricular activities
 Combined grade levels
 Lack of professional development opportunities that are

nearby and address California teaching standards,
curriculum and locally specific problems

 More vocational education opportunities are needed for
student success

 Socio-economic disadvantage
 After school activities for bus riders

Actions

 Instructional aides have been hired to assist in
combination classes

 Restructure of the Elementary School
 Expanding: Data Gathering
 PLCs
 Independent Study Program
 Uniform offerings aligned district wide that meet A-

G requirements
 District wide PSAT testing-incorporated into four

year plan
 Support for new teachers
 Transitional counseling/4 year planning including

financial aid



3. Overview of data analysis

 There are no statistically significant subgroups in our school based
upon the small numbers of students.

 DES had an increase of points on our API last year.
 DHS had a decrease in API points from 778 to 731.
 DHS has a 100% CAHSEE pass rate for this years 10th Graders

4. Goals based on data analysis

 Identify bottom 40% of students for intervention
 Using benchmark assessments will allow us to diagnose learning

strengths and weaknesses
 Continue to work with our students to maintain a high rate of

success on the CAHSEE.
 Improve the success rate of all students below proficient on all

mandated tests.

5. Professional development plan

 We will continue the creation of standards based benchmark
assessments to drive our instruction to better prepare our students.

 Our BTSA coach will continue to work with and support all new
staff.

 We have joined a consortium of professional development with
Placer County.

6. School leadership: Focus on student learning

My role as an instructional leader, and I monitor progress by:

 Using the “walk through” method of monitoring teaching and
learning.

 Meeting with grade levels and content areas on a regular basis to
set goals based upon instructional data.

 Allocate resources based on data and need.



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Single Plan for Student Achievement

Downieville Schools
School Demographics for 2010-2011

School Enrollment (CBEDS) 56

Percent Economically Disadvantaged (STAR) 47

Percent English Learners (STAR) 4

Ethnicity (STAR)

Hispanic 4
Asian 3
White 49

Downieville Schools
Academic Performance Index (API) Growth

2011 Base
API Actual

Growth
Target For

11-12

2012
Growth

API Actual

2011-2012
Growth
Actual

Goal
Met

Elementary 851 * 860 9 Yes

JR/SR High
778 5 731 -47 No

Subgroups N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

 *School scored at or above the statewide performance target of
800. No growth is needed.



Single Plan for Student Achievement

School Profile

Downieville School is located in Western Sierra County and serves the communities of
Downieville, Sierra City, Goodyears Bar, Pike and Alleghany. This is a very large
geographic area. Therefore, many of our students ride the bus daily. This school is one of
five in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District.

Special programs include our Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) class,
which supports our kids in academic success as well as entering and finding financial
support at the college and university level.  We also have ISP   (Independent Study
Program) to assist students in credit recovery as well as making up out of sync classes.
Tutoring is also provided with assistance from several teachers before and after school
and at lunch with prior arrangements. DHS has made large efforts to expand its limited
curriculum by creating several innovative classes in Natural Resources with funding from
SB70 and working in conjunction with Feather River College.

The school serves 56 students kindergarten through twelfth grade.  The ethnic make up is
as follows:  2% Asian, 5% Latino/Hispanic, 88% Caucasian.

Downieville Elementary staff includes: 1 administrator (shared with DHS), .4 school
secretary, 2 full time regular education teachers, .2 special education teacher, 1 special
education aide, 2 part time classroom instructional aides, 1 part time librarian, 1 part time
speech therapist, .5 cook, .5 custodian, & .5 maintenance person.  The two classes are
combined and split kindergarten-3rd grade and 4th-6th grade.

Downieville Jr./Sr. High staff includes: 1 part time administrator (shared with DES), .4
school secretary (shared with DES), 3.5 full time regular teachers, the entire classified
and confidential staff is shared with the elementary school.

An aggressive attendance-monitoring program has been established district-wide and on-
site.  Our school secretary monitors attendance daily.  The office staff helps families by
providing information about available resources, as well as addressing student attendance
issues with parents and students.  The School Attendance Review Board is comprised of
school officials, government agencies and law enforcement.  They are poised to step in to
situations where school attendance has become a problem.

The Response To Intervention (RTI) team membership is flexible and depends upon the
needs of the student, but usually includes the student, parent(s)/guardian, teacher(s),
Principal, & Special Education teacher if needed.  At the RTI meetings, a student’s



strengths, weaknesses, and needs are written down as specifically as possible and parent
input is encouraged.  At these meetings an action plan is developed to meet stated needs,
with a follow-up date to discuss the success of the action plan, and to generate further
suggestions for intervention if needed.  For students still not being successful even with
classroom modifications, the RTI plan can recommend special education testing when
necessary and appropriate.  When testing is completed, an IEP (Individualized Education
Program) meeting is held to determine a student’s eligibility and placement.

The School Site Council (SSC), a group of parents and staff that meet quarterly, is
charged with implementing the Single Plan for Student Achievement.  The SSC monitors
the Single Plan, which ensures that all students have access to the core curriculum, that
the program of support services is coordinated to minimize duplication and eliminate
gaps, and to ensure that the school program is responsive to the individual needs of each
student.  The single Plan for Student Achievement also ensures that the needs of ELL,
educationally disadvantaged, GATE and Special Education students are addressed along
with the training needs of the staff.  Finally, the SSC is charged with ensuring that there
is ongoing evaluation of the school program.

The learning environment is conducive to a strong academic focus, which is
accomplished through a clear understanding of the state and District content and
performance standards for all students.  The Downieville School faculty meets and
participates in staff development opportunities to stay current with District adopted data
analysis programs.

1. Alignment of curriculum, instruction and materials to content and
performance standards:

The district has adopted the state approved curriculum in reading/language arts, math,
social studies, and science and teachers use those materials to assure that students receive
instruction in the content areas based on California’s content standards. Instruction is
informed, modified, and differentiated by teachers through the process of grade level
teacher analysis of student performance on continuous monitoring and benchmark
assessments. All students, K-12, are expected to master the grade level standards in order
to be promoted to the next grade.

Currently in language arts, we are using state adopted textbooks: Open Court Reading
and Step-up to Writing program at the elementary level. These texts/programs are
comprehensive and are utilized by all student groups including special education students
and English language learners. In mathematics, we are currently using Saxon Math
(2008) in grades K through six.  All student groups use Saxon math materials.  Houghton
Mifflin Social Studies and Harcourt Brace Science are used in grades three through six.

These materials were approved by the State Board of Education because they were
aligned with content standards and frameworks; organized in a sequential way from grade
level to grade level; contain assessment designed to measure what students know and



what they can do; provide universal access for all students; and provide instructional
planning and support for teachers.

All students, 9-12, are expected to master the course standards in order to earn
appropriate credits and to meet all graduation requirements. In all core curricular areas
Downieville High School is using state adopted and or district approved textbooks. The
textbooks used in the lower grades are aligned with the texts used at Downieville High
School.  The texts are standards based and aligned with the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified
School District adopted curriculum. In the spring of 2005 math and science textbooks
were adopted and purchased for the 2005-2006 school year. Needed science lab
equipment, in compliance with the newly negotiated Williams Act, was prioritized by the
science teachers for purchase for the 2005-2006 school year.  This included some of the
lab equipment, which came from the recently closed Pliocene Ridge School.  The
district’s Social Studies Committee has been working on the adoption of new texts
district wide. We have finalized this process and delivered the new books to all
classrooms. This adoption included standards-based textbooks for grades K-12.

All textbooks used in the Honors Program or the Advanced Placement courses are those
approved through College Board, and in accordance with the UC/CSU policies and
regulations.  A staff members from Downieville High School trained in Advanced
Placement strategies allowing them to be better prepared to instruct these students.
Downieville High School currently offers only two AP and Honors courses: AP English
Literature and Composition and AP English Language and composition. Due to our small
size, students may also take advantage of site-based classes on a rotating schedule. Other
courses can be taken online. It is our goal to eventually include other AP and Honors
courses via the new Distance Learning program.

2.  Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all
student groups:

The goal of our instructional program is to insure access to standards based curriculum
and instruction so that all students can meet or exceed the standards. All students have
equal access and opportunity to master grade level standards.  Standards based
instructional materials (textbooks and their supplements) are purchased for every student
at every grade level, in the core content areas.

Students identified with special needs have an Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Each
plan is written by the IEP team and specifically designed to meet the student’s academic
needs. Special education teachers use standards based materials to assist each student in
meeting his or her educational goals. In addition, each child at Downieville School is
mainstreamed into the general education setting for at least part of each day as their IEP
permits. For all of their classes, they have access to the mainstream teachers due to
NCLB “Highly Qualified Teacher” requirements. With the support of special education
personnel, special education students are given the opportunity to access and master
grade level standards.



English language learners are also incorporated into the mainstreamed classroom.
(Currently, Downieville Elementary has only three ELL students). Many teachers on site
have received either their BCLAD, CLAD, or SDAIE training to receive their
certification. Teachers use standards based materials and SDAIE instructional strategies
in order for English Language Learners to master the curriculum. Students in need of
intensive language instruction have access to a part time bilingual aide to assist them in
problem areas.

3. Alignment of staff development to standards, assessed student
performance and professional needs:

Student achievement and staff needs are evaluated yearly. The district utilizes a number
of staff development days authorized by the state each year to provide staff development
opportunities in the following areas:
• Buy-Back days to introduce and train teachers in the adopted writing

program.
• Reading and literacy training through the research based Open Court

program. This training was provided to both of the new elementary teachers as
well as the opportunity teacher.

• PLC’s to align and develop benchmark assessments.
data analysis software, that better assesses student progress on state standards.
This training is ongoing.

• Technology training: Smartboards
• Strategies and techniques for teaching diverse student populations
• Training in the content areas
• Classroom Management
• Standards based Instruction
• K-12 Health Integration into the curriculum

4. Services provided by the regular program to enable underperforming
students to meet standards:

All teachers implement the standards-based instructional materials described above. The
district-adopted materials address the needs of diverse learners, including
underperforming students. At Downieville Elementary School, all students participate in
a leveled reading program. Students are assessed at the beginning of the year and placed
in reading groups based on that data. Each class is structured to meet the needs of the
students in those particular reading levels. Students are reassessed throughout the year,
and as their reading proficiency improves they are able to move to the appropriate group.
Students are exposed to expository text as well as literature. Our Title I instructor
provides support and assistance to students in grades K-3.

Student Study Team meetings are held to collaboratively find ways to help under
performing students meet the state standards. The team includes the classroom teachers, a
special education teacher, parents, and the Principal. As a result of these meetings,



students are often referred for testing for special education services, counseling, and
tutoring. A plan is developed to assist the regular education teacher meet the need of
under-performing students in the classroom.

5. Services provided by categorical funds to enable Underperforming
students to meet standards:

We use a sizeable portion of our categorical funding to support instructional aide time in
the classroom.  Both of our elementary classrooms are combination classes. One is K-3
and the other is 4-6. In order to enable the teacher to work effectively with each grade
level and the diverse needs of students at that grade level, several aides are necessary. A
third aide is provided to the special education classes. Therefore, Title 1, SBX3 4 Flex
and EIA-EIALL funds are spent on personnel who work directly with under-performing
students.

 Staff development opportunities for teachers and support staff-in
Reading/Language Arts (Language!), Math and Science to support the best
practices in instruction.

 Supplemental Materials are provided to students to assist in their learning,
including books, calculators, and other instructional materials.

6. Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve
student achievement:

Both state and local assessments are used to inform instructors and to address individual
student gaps in academic performance. Each year, the principal analyzes state assessment
results with teachers and discuss what actions are needed for student achievement. These
actions are reviewed in staff meetings as well as individual teacher meetings with
administration. Site categorical resources target supplemental interventions to improve
student performance. Teachers use state and local assessments to determine at-risk status
of students, develop interventions, and determine promotion and retention. Teachers meet
by either grade level or content area with the site administrator to discuss results, share
best practices, modify instruction, and determine interventions to implement for specific
students. The Principal monitors effective implementation of standards-based programs
and progress of students through observation, meetings, and data basing student progress.
The students who score in the bottom 30% are specifically identified for intervention.

The district curriculum council is working to create a writing assessment that is practical
and useful for analyzing students’ writing.  Benchmark tests in Reading, Language Arts,
Social Studies, Science and Math are also being developed.

The Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District also maintains a rigorous promotion and
retention policy.



Each year, our students participate in the CST testing as required by the state. The data
generated by the testing is disaggregated and made available to the teachers. Teachers are
able to see areas of student strength and weakness and modify instruction to address those
needs.

5. Number and percentage of teachers in academic areas experiencing low student
performance:

All students are distributed into classrooms to achieve a balance of high, medium, and
low abilities. As a result, every teacher (100%) works with children who are under-
performing.  Through the use of CST scores, local assessment and informal and formal
testing in the classroom, teachers evaluate the data and plan lessons to challenge those
students with average to high abilities and remediate those who are struggling.
Differentiated instruction will allow students to progress at their individual pace and
ability. Although the test scores at DES and DHS are consistently high, there are some
students in every grade level that struggle to meet the standards.

8.  Family, school, district and community resources available to assist these
students:

The First 5 program of Sierra County offers assistance to parents and their families in the
transition of children into the school system.

Children’s System of Care offers support for children (teachers and parents as well)
whose behaviors impact their academic performance.

All teachers offer a quiet classroom where students may complete homework and get
assistance outside of regular class time if necessary.

Summer School: There will not be a summer school program this summer due to the lack
of funds.

9.  School, district and community barriers to improvements in student
achievement:

Many people who move to Downieville come here from Reno, NV and other western
states.  This causes some difficulty because of the inconsistencies in reading and math
programs to which they have been exposed. California Standards tend to be a grade level
or two above those of Nevada, Oregon, Idaho and Wyoming.  Our standardized tests also
tend to be more stringent than most other states.

Downieville School serves a population of students and their families from an area that is
socio-economically depressed.   At times, over 60% of our students receive free and



reduced lunches. As a result, our school faces the typical barriers associated with high
poverty rates: lack of parental involvement, lack of health care and mental health care
services, absenteeism, child abuse and neglect, family instability and violence.

10.  Limitations of the current program to enable Underperforming students
to meet standards:

• Lack of community resources due to rural isolation.

• Limited ability to facilitate parental involvement in their students academic
endeavors.

• Lack of credentialed Title I teacher.

• Lack of funding to provide transportation for students participating in after school
programs such as additional tutoring.

• Lack of vocational education opportunities. More offerings could improve student
motivation.

• Lack of funding to hire necessary staff to open the campus and resources on
Saturdays and evenings.

• Lack of sufficient funding and staff to meet the growing needs of EL students.

• Lack of sufficient funding to keep pace with technology needs.

• Lack of professional development opportunities that are nearby and address CA
standards, curriculum and locally specific problems



Single Plan for Student Achievement

School Culture

Increase opportunities to learn

To increase student attendance as measured by a decrease in the number of absences and
discipline referrals.

Planned Improvements in Student Achievement

The content of this school plan is aligned with school goals for improving student
achievement. School goals are based upon analysis of verifiable state data, including the
Academic Performance Index, California Standardized Test and the English Language
Development test, including local measures of student achievement (Edusoft & LinkIt).
The school site council analyzed available data on the academic performance of all
students, including English Learners, economically disadvantaged students, gifted and
talented students, and students with exceptional needs.  The council also obtained and
considered input from the school community.  Based on these analyses, the council has
established the following performance improvement goals, actions, and expenditures.

Goal:  ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS and MATHEMATICS

Goal Statement
To increase the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced by 5 percent as
measured on the 2012 California Standards Test (CST) in English Language Arts and
mathematics. To maintain an API score at or above 800.

Student Group
School wide

Performance Gains – English Language Arts

ELA Target = 67.6%
School wide at or above proficient 68.4%
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 63.6%

The Elementary School wide percentage scoring proficient or higher will increase
from 68.4% (May 2012) to 70.0% (May 2013).



Performance Gains – Math

Math Target = 68.5%
School wide at or above proficient 57.9%
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 54.5%

The Elementary School wide percentage scoring proficient or higher will increase
from 57.9% (May 2012) to 68.5% (May 2013).

Means of Evaluating

Annual state assessments (CST)
Report card data

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice
Downieville Elementary School

School wide instructional assistants:

Means of Achievement: Purchase an interactive Smart Board.  Purchasing Study Island
to assist students with foundational

Task: To assist in the daily reading language arts and mathematics intervention
instruction focusing on low-performing students. Provide students (Grades K-5) in need
of small group or one-to-one support in reading/language arts intervention under the
direction of the classroom teacher.

Measures: Daily schedules, ongoing classroom monitoring

Personnel assigned: Classified aides, high school students (TA)

Start Dates: 08/27/12 End Dates: 06/7/13

Funding Source Related Expenditure Estimated Costs
Title 1 Classified Salary $ 4,000
Federal Job(s) Funds Classified Salary $18,000
SBX3 4 Flex Classroom Material & Supplies $ 7,000
REAP Classified Salary $ 5,000



School Librarian - Downieville Elementary School

Tasks: Provide library/media experiences for elementary, middle and high school
students.

Measures: Daily schedules, classified evaluation tool

Person assigned: Classified Staff

Start Dates: 08/27/12 End Dates: 06/7/13

Funding Source              Related Expenditure Estimated Costs
SBX3 4 Flex Classified Salary $ 4,000

Professional Development

Means of Achievement: Staff development and professional collaboration

Tasks: Provide professional development opportunities to teachers in the areas of
reading/language arts and opportunities to collaborate around student assessment and
instructions.

Measures: On-going

People Assigned: Derek Cooper, Site Administrator

Start Dates: 08/27/12 End Dates: 06/07/13

Funding Source Related Expenditures Estimated Costs
Title I Registration Fees/ Substitutes $ 420



GOAL:  ENGLISH LANGUAGE DEVELOPMENT
Goal Statement
To increase the proficiency levels of all English Learner students by one level as
measured on the 2010 CELDT

Student Group
English Learner(s)

Performance Gains
All English Learner(s) will gain one proficiency level annually.

Means of Evaluating
CELDT

Description of Specific Actions to Improve Educational Practice
Means of Achievement: Increased educational opportunity

Task: Provide supplemental instruction to EL student(s)

Measures: CELDT, CST ELA, ongoing classroom monitoring

People assigned: Classified Staff

Start Dates: 08/27/12 End Dates: 06/07/13

Funding Source Related Expenditures Estimated Costs
EIA Classified Salary $ 5,000



Categorical Funding Allocated to this School/District

The following state and federal categorical funds were allocated to this school through
the Consolidated Application, Part II.  Additional funds (listed under “Other”) may be
allocated to the school in accordance with district policy.

STATE PROGRAMS
Economic Impact Aid/English Learner Program Amount: $1,700
Purpose:  Develop fluency in English and academic proficiency of English learners

SBX3 4 Flex Amount:  $25,000
Purpose:  Increase academic achievement.

Purpose:  Improve school response to educational, personal, and career needs of all
students

Purpose:  To increase academic achievement by improving teacher and principal quality.

Purpose:  To increase academic achievement by providing smaller group instruction
opportunities for students who are experiencing difficulties in core subjects.

This is the fund where many State Categorical Programs were combined.  The district has
restricted site use of many of these funds.

FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Elementary and Secondary Education Act:
Title 1: Amount: $ 4,420
Federal Jobs: Amount:    $18,000
Purpose: To ensure that all children have a fair, equal, and significant opportunity to
obtain a high-quality education, and reach minimum proficiency on the state content
standards and assessments.

Title II:  Teacher Quality Amount: $ 3,000



REAP Amount:     $ 6,000
Purpose: To increase academic achievement by improving teacher and principal quality.

Form D: School Site Council Membership

Education Code Section 64001(g) requires that the SPSA be reviewed and updated at
least annually, including proposed expenditures of funds allocated to the through the
Consolidated Application, by the school site council. The current make-up of the school
site council is as follows:1

Names of Members

Pr
in

ci
pa

l

C
la

ss
ro

om
Te

ac
he

r

O
th

er
 S

ch
oo

l
St

af
f

Pa
re

nt
 o

r
C

om
m

un
ity

M
em

be
r

Se
co

nd
ar

y
St

ud
en

t

Derek Cooper X

Augustine Corcoran X

Alicia Schofield X

Cynthia Schofield X

Steve Folsom X

Amber Sainsbury X

Numbers of members of each category 1 2 1 3 0

1 At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity
between (a) the principal, classroom teachers, and other school personnel, and (b)
parents of students attending the school or other community members. Classroom
teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At
secondary schools there must be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other
community members selected by parents, and students. All members must be selected
by their peer group.



Single Plan for Student Achievement
Schoolwide Action Plan

English Language Arts and Mathematics

Area: To continue to develop strategies to provide additional academic support
in the areas of literacy and mathematics.

Growth: Downieville High School will increase the number of students scoring
proficient or above on the CST English Language Arts and subject
mathematics tests by five percent as compared to the 2011 CST scores.

Rationale: To provide students with stronger literacy and mathematics skills to meet
their present and future academic, vocational, and personal needs.

ESLR Link: Knowledgeable, Critical Thinkers, and Effective Communicators

Means of Achievement:

1. Purchase and installation Smart Boards.

2. Purchasing IPass, CalIQity, and Study Island to assist students with foundational
mathematics skills to enable them to successfully access the core curriculum.

3. Providing EIA/ELL aide to assist students in gaining foundation skills needed to
successfully complete core classes and to pass the CAHSEE by offering tutoring in
class and during lunch.

4. Motivating students to increase time spent in reading by providing materials for
reading circles in Flex and purchasing the Accelerated Reader program for
Downieville High School.

5. Implement quarterly benchmark exams in all mathematics and English classes.  This
may require purchasing exams from another school or vendor.

6. Maintaining a vocational program that provides students with opportunities to apply
and enhance the core academic skills in hands-on vocational settings.

Funding Source: Sierra County Office of Education (ISP), EIA/ELL funding, and
Title VI Small Rural Schools Achievement Program

Estimated Cost: $15,000

Implementers: Administration, Staff, Technology Coordinator, District Testing
Coordinator



Means to Assess: Comparison of CST scores in mathematics and ELA from 2011 to
2012, school schedule, classroom checks, and annual review of
action plan at faculty meetings

Professional Development

Area: To offer training to the faculty and staff at Downieville High School to
foster professionalism and collaboration, to further develop the craft of
teaching, and to enhance the love of learning and teaching that originally
lead them to careers in education.

Growth: Downieville High School will meet their API growth for 2012 and meet
expected goals in all areas of the AYP.

Rationale: To provide students with the academic and vocational skills needed to
become productive, successful workers and community members.

ESLR Link: Knowledgeable, Critical Thinkers, and Effective Communicators;
Effective Communicators

Means of Achievement:

1. Providing professional development opportunities to staff in the areas of
assessment and course design.

2. Providing funding for teachers who are planning to teach or are teaching
Advanced Placement courses to attend AP Institute workshops.

3. Scheduling minimum days to allow all teachers to participate in district
Professional Learning Communities activities.

4. Offering professional development to all staff in the use of Smart Board
technology.

5. Providing funding for AVID staff to attend AVID seminars and workshops.

6. Increasing professional development opportunities for mathematics staff.

Funding Source: Sierra-Plumas JUSD and Sierra County Office of Education, Title
II Teacher Quality

Estimated Cost: $3,000

Implementers: Administration, Staff, Business Manager

Means to Assess: API/AYP review and annual review of action plan at faculty
meetings



Core Intervention Enrollments

Area: To continue to ensure that placement in Core Intervention and Math
Intervention courses is limited to students with specific academic needs
determined by student grades and/or standardized test scores.

Growth: Downieville High School seniors will all pass the CAHSEE prior to
graduation, and Downieville High School will achieve its API/AYP goals
in 2012.

Rationale: To ensure academic progress for all students toward meeting their
individual academic goals and the school’s overall academic goals.

ESLR Link: Knowledgeable, Critical Thinkers, and Effective Communicators;
Effective Communicators

Means of Achievement:

1. Evaluating student report cards at the end of each semester.

2. Annual review of CST results to accurately place students who score Below Basic
or Far Below Basic in ELA or mathematics in core intervention courses to
provide indicated need for support.

3. Using intervention materials and software programs - such as provided with
Language!, IPass, and Study Island - to accurately assess student placement in
Core Intervention classes.

4. Mandating enrollment in Core Intervention or Math Intervention for students in
Grades 11 and 12 who have not passed one or both sections of the CAHSEE.

Funding Source: Sierra County Office of Education, and EIA/ELL

Estimated Cost: $1,000
Note: Software cost is included in English Language Arts and
Mathematics section.

Implementers: Administration, Staff, Business Manager, RTI Coordinator,
Resource Specialist

Means to Assess: Annual review of CST scores, ongoing review of CAHSEE scores,
and annual review of action plan at faculty meetings



School Culture

Area: To create an environment conducive to student learning where students
learn to value education and feel safe, welcome, and comfortable.

Growth: Truancy rate will drop by three percent and the percentage of students
involved in extra- co-curricular activities will increase by three percent as
compared to the 2010-11 school year.

Rationale: When a school focuses on learning and maintains a safe, welcoming,
comfortable environment students will attend and actively participate.

ESLR Link: Healthy Individuals

Means of Achievement:

1. Working closely with Sierra County Office of Education in accessing the services
of the School Psychologist to work with student groups or individuals as
recommended by RTI/SSTs or SARB.

2. Keeping the school facilities and grounds in good repair and clean to promote
student pride, health, and safety.

3. Continued communication with parents, students, and stakeholders to improve
involvement in our school and commitment to our school’s goals.  Funds will be
used for stationery and postage.

4. Cooperation with district office, project manager, and maintenance staff in
obtaining funding for facility improvements including those indicated on our
Facilities Inspection Tool and recommended by School Site Council.

5. Supporting student clubs in meeting their stated goals as they relate to leadership
development, community service, and academic enhancement.

6. Maintaining an interscholastic athletic program that promotes athletic
development, sportsmanship, student academic achievement, and healthy
lifestyles.

7. Providing a period in the schedule for a teacher to serve as Academic Adviser to
assist students with setting academic and career goals, funding post-high school
education and/or training, and applying to colleges and universities.

Funding Source: Sierra-Plumas JUSD, Sierra County Office of Education, SBX3 4
Flex, and Carl Perkins Vocational Education Funds

Estimated Cost: Most cost is included in County funded Psychologist/Risk
Counselor,   and Maintenance and Custodial salaries.

Implementers: Administration, Staff, Students, Parents, Community



Means to Assess: Annual review of action plan at faculty meetings

CATEGORICAL FUNDING ALLOCATED TO THIS SCHOOL

The following state and federal categorical funds were allocated to this school through
the Consolidated Application, Part II.  Additional funds (listed under “Other”) may be
allocated to the school in accordance with district policy.

Vocational Education Carl D. Perkins Funds Amount:  $    500
These funds will be used to purchase instructional materials, supplies, and equipment for
the vocational woodshop, computer applications, and agriculture programs.

Title II, NCLB, Part A, Teacher Quality Amount:  $ 3,000
Title II funds are used to provide professional development on technology in order to
increase student access to technology in core curriculum and to assist non-NCLB teachers
to obtain appropriate credentials.

EIA-EIALL English Learners Amount:  $5,700
These funds will be used to provide instructional aide salaries and to purchase
instructional materials to help English Learners at Downieville High School successfully
access the core curriculum.

SBX3 4 Flex Amount:  $9,500
These funds represent the balance of what were previously the categorical funds given to
each district to divide between school sites and programs.  These funding sources are
now flexible and can be used by districts to support school programs.  The majority of
“flex” funds were used for salaries and benefits to maintain employment.

Small Rural Schools Amount:  $2,500
These funds are to support instruction and academic programs for students in rural
communities.  We traditionally use the funding for technology and distance education.

Programs Included in this Plan

State and Local Programs Allocation


Economic Impact Aid/English Learner Program
Purpose:  Develop fluency in English and academic proficiency of English
Learners.

$5,700


SBX3 4 Flex Funds
Purpose:  Provide funds to carry out school goals. $ 9,500

Total amount of state categorical and flex funds allocated to this school $15,200



Federal Programs under No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Allocation


Vocational Education Carl D. Perkins Funds
Purpose:  Students receive vocational and technology skills that support
academic standards.

$   500


Title II, Part A: NCLB, Teacher Quality
Purpose:  Support professional development and the use of technology. $3,000


Small Rural Schools
Purpose:  Allow rural schools to provide academic opportunities for
students.

$2,500

Total amount of federal categorical funds allocated to this school $6,000



RECOMMENDATIONS AND ASSURANCES

The school site council recommends this school plan and its related expenditures to the
district governing board for approval, and assures the board of the following:

1. The school site council is correctly constituted, and was formed in accordance with
district governing board policy and state law.

2. The school site council reviewed its responsibilities under state law and district
governing board policies, including those board policies relating to material changes
in the school plan requiring board approval.

3. The school site council sought and considered all recommendations from the
following groups or committees before adopting this plan (Check those that apply)

 ___ School Advisory Committee for State Compensatory Education Programs

 ___ English Learner Advisory Committee

 ___ Community Advisory Committee for Special Education Programs

 ___ Gifted and Talented Education Program Advisory Committee

 ___ Other (List)

4. The school site council reviewed the content requirements for school plans of
programs included in this Single Plan for Student Achievement, and believes all such
content requirements have been met, including those found in district governing
board policies and in the Local Improvement Plan.

5. This school plan is based upon a thorough analysis of student academic performance.
The actions proposed herein form a sound, comprehensive, coordinated plan to reach
stated school goals to improve student academic performance.

6. This school plan was adopted by the school site council on:

Attested:

______________________________ _______________________ _____
Derek Cooper
Typed name of school principal Signature of school principal Date

______________________________ _______________________ _____
Amber Sainsbury
Typed name of SSC chairperson Signature of SSC chairperson Date







Small Area Income and Poverty Estimate (SAIPE)

2011 - California - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

Year State
District

ID District Name

Grade range
of

responsibility
Total

Population

Relevant
age 5 to

17
Population

Relevant
age 5 to

17 in
families

in
poverty

2011 06 0636780 Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District KG-12 3,745 488 83

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE) Program,  December 2012

MODEL BASED ESTIMATES:  The data provided are indirect estimates produced by statistical model-based   methods using sample
survey, decennial census, and administrative data sources. The estimates contain error stemming from model error,   sampling error, and
nonsampling error.  For methodology see: http://www.census.gov/did/www/saipe/methods/index.html



 

Superintendent Evaluation Form                                         Evaluation Period:  ________ to _________ 

 

 

For each Standard, number each Performance Indicator from 1 – 5 (1 = unsatisfactory; 5 = satisfactory.)  There are 

seven Standards altogether. 

 

PART  I - Job Responsibilities 
 
STANDARD #1: A superintendent is an educational leader who promotes the success of all students facilitating the 

development, articulation, implementation, and stewardship of a vision of learning that is shared and supported by 

the school community. 

 

 

Performance Indicators: 

 

___ Sets priorities in the context of improving student achievement.  

___ Articulates and promotes high expectations for teaching and student learning.  

___ Develops, communicates, and implements a collective vision of comprehensive school improvement.  

       Formulates comprehensive school improvement plans (CSIP), goals, and change efforts with staff    
___ and community.  

___ Formulates procedures for gathering, analyzing and using district data for decision-making.  

 

Supporting Evidence:   

  

  

  

  

  

Summary Rating 

Satisfactory 

Unsatisfactory 

 

 

 

 

Total for Standard #1 

 

SUM OF ABOVE SCORES:  ________  ÷ 5 = _________. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



C:/Documents and Settings\htomatis\My Documents\Superintendent Evaluation\Superintendent Evaluation Form.doc                                                 

 

STANDARD #2: A superintendent is an educational leader who promotes the success of all students by advocating, 

nurturing and sustaining a school culture and instructional program conducive to student learning and staff 

professional development. 

 

Performance Indicators: 

 

___ Provides leadership for annually assessing and setting priorities on student and district needs.  

___ Evaluates and provides direction for improving school district programs.  

___ Examines student achievement data, disaggregates data and creates improvement plans. 

___ Provides leadership for assessing, developing and improving school environment and culture.  

 Provides leadership encouragement, opportunities, and structure for all staff to continually design    
___ more effective teaching and learning experiences for all students.  

___ Evaluates and provides direction for improving instructional strategies.  

___ Develops and offers opportunities that respond to staffs’ needs for professional development.  

___ Encourages and facilitates the use of technology to improve teaching and learning. 

___ Encourages and supports personal and professional development among staff. 

___ Demonstrates awareness of professional issues and developments in education. 

 Develops and revises as needed his/her own professional development plan for continued improved 
___ performance. 

 

Supporting Evidence:   

  

  

  

  

  

Summary Rating 

Satisfactory 

Unsatisfactory 

 

 

 

Total for Standard #2 

 

SUM OF ABOVE SCORES:  ________  ÷ 11 = _________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



C:/Documents and Settings\htomatis\My Documents\Superintendent Evaluation\Superintendent Evaluation Form.doc                                                  

 

 

STANDARD #3: A superintendent is an educational leader who promotes the success of all students by ensuring 

management of the organization, operations, and resources for a safe, efficient, and effective learning environment. 

 

Performance Indicators: 

 

___ Analyzes and reports on student achievement, attendance, and graduation rate.  

___ Monitors distribution of district resources based on the district’s school improvement plan.  

___ Provides direction and support for periodic review of curriculum and school policies and procedures.  

___ Evaluates performance of staff and takes appropriate follow-up action.  

___ Complies with district personnel policies and rules.  

___ Demonstrates the ability to improve performance of staff members. 

___ Monitors recruitment and selection of district personnel and holds staff accountable for performance. 

___ Demonstrates knowledge and keeps well informed of funding sources.  

___ Effectively manages both revenues and expenditures of the district budget.  

___ Facilities are maintained and upgraded according to a district-developed plan. 

 Effectively and consistently applies the legal requirements for personnel selection, retention, and  

___ dismissal.  

___ Ensures that policies and rules are uniformly observed and enforced.  

___ Implements a collaborative approach to policy development on student discipline. 

___ Formulates and implements plans for internal staff communications. 

 

Supporting Evidence:   

  

  

  

  

  

Summary Rating 

Satisfactory 

Unsatisfactory 

 
 
Total for Standard #3 

 

SUM OF ABOVE SCORES:  ________  ÷ 14 = _________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



C:/Documents and Settings\htomatis\My Documents\Superintendent Evaluation\Superintendent Evaluation Form.doc                                                  

 

STANDARD #4: A superintendent is an educational leader who promotes the success of all students by 

collaborating with families and community members, responding to diverse community interests and needs, and 

mobilizing community resources. 

 

Performance Indicators: 

 

___ Provides leadership for improving parent/student/community involvement in the schools.  

Promotes, demonstrates, and supports clear two-way communication at all levels of the community  
___  and  school district.  

 Formulates and implements plans for external communication, including communication of the school 
___ district priorities to the community and media. 

___ Provides community service and leadership for developing a positive rapport between the schools   
and the community.  

 

Supporting Evidence:   

  

  

  

  

  

Summary Rating 

Satisfactory 

Unsatisfactory 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total for Standard #4 

 

SUM OF ABOVE SCORES:  ________  ÷ 4 = _________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



C:/Documents and Settings\htomatis\My Documents\Superintendent Evaluation\Superintendent Evaluation Form.doc                                                  

 

STANDARD #5: A superintendent is an educational leader who promotes the success of all students by acting with 

integrity, fairness, and in an ethical manner. 

 

Performance Indicators: 

 

___ Conducts oneself in an ethical, trustworthy and professional manner in the school environment, board   
and community.  

___ Demonstrates awareness of professional issues and developments in education.  

___ Treats everyone with fairness. 

___ Demonstrates integrity in all actions. 

___ Establishes practices to promote personal, physical, and emotional health.  

 

Supporting Evidence:   

  

  

  

  

  

Summary Rating 

Satisfactory 

Unsatisfactory 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Total for Standard #5 

 

SUM OF ABOVE SCORES:  ________  ÷ 5 = _________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



C:/Documents and Settings\htomatis\My Documents\Superintendent Evaluation\Superintendent Evaluation Form.doc                                                  

 

 

STANDARD #6: A superintendent is an educational leader who promotes the success of all students by 

understanding, responding to, and influencing the larger political, social, economic, legal, and cultural context. 

 

Performance Indicators: 

 

___ Serves as an articulate spokesperson for the welfare of all members of the learning community.  

___ Demonstrates respect for diversity in students, staff, and programs.  

___ Advocates in the political environment for issues beneficial to improving teaching and learning. 

___ Communicates clearly and substantively to the community about district issues and performance.  

       Provides leadership with the board for defining superintendent and board roles, mutual expectations, 
___ procedures for working together, and formulating district policies.  

___ Recommends district policy in consideration of state and federal requirements and local expectations.  

___ Knows and supports the district school improvement plan and accurately reports progress on goals. 

 

Supporting Evidence:   

  

  

  

  

  

Summary Rating 

Satisfactory 

Unsatisfactory 

 
 
Total for Standard #6 

 

SUM OF ABOVE SCORES:  ________ ÷ 7 = _________. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C:/Documents and Settings\htomatis\My Documents\Superintendent Evaluation\Superintendent Evaluation Form.doc                                                  

 
STANDARD #7: A superintendent is an educational leader who promotes the success of all students by facilitating 

the development of a communicative, professional relationship with the Board of Trustees. 

 
Performance Indicators: 

 

___ Interprets & executes Board Policy. 

 Offers professional advice to the Board on items requiring Board action, with appropriate  

___ recommendations based on thorough study and analysis. 

___ Advice to Board and recommendation of actions. 

___ Preparation of agenda and attendance at Board meetings. 

___ Formulates and presents District policy proposals. 

___ Strives to create a trusting relationship. 

___ Keeps Board informed on issues, needs, and operation of the school system. 

___ Recommends employment of all staff. 

___ Makes personnel assignments, reassignments for best interests of the District. 

___ Communicates status of projects in progress on a regular basis. 

___ Accepts responsibility for maintaining liaison between the Board and personnel. 

___ Responsible for collective bargaining process and maintaining close working relationship with SPTA. 

Purports and maintains position based on Board Policy concerning controversial education matters, 
___  while actively seeking clarification or interpretation from the Board/Counsel. 

___ Secures legal interpretations whenever necessary. 

 

Supporting Evidence:   

  

  

  

  

  

Summary Rating 

Satisfactory 

Unsatisfactory 

 
 
 
Total for Standard #7 

 

SUM OF ABOVE SCORES:  ________  ÷ 14 = _________. 

 

                                                                  



C:/Documents and Settings\htomatis\My Documents\Superintendent Evaluation\Superintendent Evaluation Form.doc                                                  

PART  II - Summary  - for compilation purposes only 
 
 

Standards Score Summary 
 

  INDIVIDUAL 

SCORE 

CUMULATIVE 

SCORE 

 Standard 1   

 Standard 2  

 Standard 3  

 Standard 4  

 Standard 5  

 Standard 6  

 Standard 7  

      TOTAL                   ÷ 7  =  

  

  

Supporting Evidence Summary 

 
Significant Achievements: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Areas for Growth: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Superintendent’s Signature:   Date:   

 
Board President’s Signature: __________________________________   Date: _________________ 



Attachment C – California Government Code Sections 4217.10-4217.18 
Page 1 of 3 

ATTACHMENT C 
CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 4217.10 – 4217.18 

 

4217.10.  To help implement the policy set forth in Section 25008 of the Public Resources Code, 
and to extend that policy to facilities of local governments, public agencies may develop energy 
conservation, cogeneration, and alternate energy supply sources at the facilities of public 
agencies in accordance with this chapter. 
 
4217.11.  The following terms, whenever used in this chapter, have the meanings given in this 
section, except where the context clearly indicates otherwise: 
 (a) "Alternate energy equipment" means equipment for the production or conversion of energy 
from alternate sources as its primary fuel source, such as solar, biomass, wind, geothermal, 
hydroelectricity under 30 megawatts, remote natural gas of less than one billion cubic feet 
estimated reserves per mile from an existing gas gathering line, natural gas containing 850 or 
fewer British Thermal Units per standard cubic foot, or any other source of energy, the efficient 
use of which will reduce the use of fossil or nuclear fuels. 
 (b) "Cogeneration equipment" means equipment for cogeneration, as defined in Section 218.5 
of the Public Utilities Code. 
 (c) "Conservation measures" means equipment, maintenance, load management techniques and 
equipment, or other measures to reduce energy use or make for a more efficient use of energy. 
 (d) "Conservation services" means the electrical, thermal, or other energy savings resulting 
from conservation measures, which shall be treated as a supply of such energy. 
 (e) "Energy conservation facility" means alternate energy equipment, cogeneration equipment, 
or conservation measures located in public buildings or on land owned by public agencies. 
 (f) "Energy service contract" means a contract entered into by a public agency with any person, 
pursuant to which the person will provide electrical or thermal energy or conservation services to 
a public agency from an energy conservation facility. 
 (g) "Facility financing contract" means a contract entered into by a public agency with any 
person whereby the person provides financing for an energy conservation facility in exchange for 
repayment of the financing and all costs and expenses related thereto by the public agency.  A 
facility financing contract may provide for the person with whom the public agency contracts to 
provide any combination of feasibility studies for, and design and construction of, all or part of 
the energy conservation facility in addition to the financing and other related services, and may 
provide for an installment sale purchase, another form of purchase, or amortized lease of the 
energy conservation facility by the public agency. 
 (h) "Facility ground lease" means a lease of all, or any portion of, land or a public building 
owned by, or under lease to, a public agency to a person in conjunction with an energy service 
contract or a facility financing contract.  A facility ground lease may include, in addition to the 
land on which energy conservation facilities will be located, easements, rights-of-way, licenses, 
and rights of access, for the construction, use, or ownership by the person of the facility and all 
related utility lines not owned or controlled by the interconnecting utility, and offsite 
improvements related thereto. A facility ground lease may also include the addition or 
improvement of utility lines and equipment owned by the interconnecting utility which are 
necessary to permit interconnection between that utility and an energy conservation facility. 



Attachment C – California Government Code Sections 4217.10-4217.18 
Page 2 of 3 

(i) "Person" means, but is not limited to, any individual, company, corporation, partnership, 
limited liability company, public agency, association, proprietorship, trust, joint venture, or other 
entity or group of entities. 
 (j) "Public agency" means the state, a county, city and county, city, district, community college 
district, school district, joint powers authority or other entity designated or created by a political 
subdivision relating to energy development projects, and any other political subdivision or public 
corporation in the state. 
 (k) "Public building" includes any structure, building, facility, or work which a public agency 
is authorized to construct or use, and automobile parking lots, landscaping, and other facilities, 
including furnishings and equipment, incidental to the use of any structure, building, facility, or 
work, and also includes the site thereof, and any easements, rights-of-way appurtenant thereto, or 
necessary for its full use. 
 
4217.12.  (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a public agency may enter into an 
energy service contract and any necessarily related facility ground lease on terms that its 
governing body determines are in the best interests of the public agency if the determination is 
made at a regularly scheduled public hearing, public notice of which is given at least two weeks 
in advance, and if the governing body finds: 
 (1) That the anticipated cost to the public agency for thermal or electrical energy or 
conservation services provided by the energy conservation facility under the contract will be less 
than the anticipated marginal cost to the public agency of thermal, electrical, or other energy that 
would have been consumed by the public agency in the absence of those purchases. 
 (2) That the difference, if any, between the fair rental value for the real property subject to the 
facility ground lease and the agreed rent, is anticipated to be offset by below-market energy 
purchases or other benefits provided under the energy service contract.  
 (b) State agency heads may make these findings without holding a public hearing. 
 
4217.13.  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a public agency may enter into a facility 
financing contract and a facility ground lease on terms that its governing body determines are in 
the best interest of the public agency if the determination is made at a regularly scheduled public 
hearing, public notice of which is given at least two weeks in advance, and if the governing body 
finds that funds for the repayment of the financing or the cost of design, construction, and 
operation of the energy conservation facility, or both, as required by the contract, are projected to 
be available from revenues resulting from sales of electricity or thermal energy from the facility 
or from funding that otherwise would have been used for purchase of electrical, thermal, or other 
energy required by the public agency in the absence of the energy conservation facility, or both.  
State agency heads may make these findings without holding a public hearing. 
 
4217.14.  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the public agency may enter into contracts 
for the sale of electricity, electrical generating capacity, or thermal energy produced by the 
energy conservation facility at such rates and on such terms as are approved by its governing 
body.  Any such contract may provide for a commitment of firm electrical capacity. 
 
4217.15.  The public agency may, but is not required to, base the findings required under 
Sections 4217.12 and 4217.13 on projections for electrical and thermal energy rates from the 
following sources: 



Attachment C – California Government Code Sections 4217.10-4217.18 
Page 3 of 3 

(a) The public utility which provides thermal or electrical energy to the public agency. 
 (b) The Public Utilities Commission. 
 (c) The State Energy Resources Conservation and Development Commission. 
 (d) The projections used by the Department of General Services for evaluating the feasibility of 
energy conservation facilities at state facilities located within the same public utility service area 
as the public agency. 
 
4217.16.  Prior to awarding or entering into an agreement or lease, the public agency may 
request proposals from qualified persons.  After evaluating the proposals, the public agency may 
award the contract on the basis of the experience of the contractor, the type of technology  
employed by the contractor, the cost to the local agency, and any other relevant considerations.  
The public agency may utilize the pool of qualified energy service companies established 
pursuant to Section 388 of the Public Utilities Code and the procedures contained in that section 
in awarding the contract. 
 
4217.17.  This chapter does not limit the authority of any public agency to construct energy 
conservation projects or to enter into other leases or contracts relating to the financing 
construction, operation, or use of alternate energy type facilities in any manner authorized under 
existing law.  This chapter shall not be construed to abrogate Section 14671.6. 
 
4217.18.  The provisions of this chapter shall be construed to provide the greatest possible 
flexibility to public agencies in structuring agreements entered into hereunder so that economic 
benefits may be maximized and financing and other costs associated with the design and 
construction of alternate energy projects may be minimized.  To this end, public agencies and the 
entities with whom they contract under this chapter should have great latitude in characterizing 
components of energy conservation facilities as personal or real property and in granting security 
interests in leasehold interests and components of the alternate energy facilities to project lenders 



















SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 1 of 11 

 

 
 
 
 
SFPD 4.08  
 
 

PLAN SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS FOR MODERNIZATION PROJECTS 

 
 

Local Educational Agencies (LEA) requesting modernization funds from the State Allocation Board 
(SAB) must have the plans reviewed and approved by the California Department of Education 
(CDE) (Education Code Section 17070.50) prior to submitting a funding request. 
 
 

Preliminary and Final Plan Submission Checklists – The checklists included in this packet 
identifying the items needed for preliminary plan and final plan submittal must be completed and 
submitted with the plans.    
 
After preliminary plan review, if CDE did not require any changes and the LEA did not revise the 
plans from the preliminary plan submission, the LEA need not submit a second SFPD 4.08C form 
or a second set of plans. Indicate in a cover letter that no changes were made to the plans or the 
educational specifications, and submit an updated SFPD 4.08A, Project Information for 
Modernization and SFPD 4.08B, Local Educational Agency Certifications for Modernization.   
 

CDE Resources and Contact Information - The required forms and instructions necessary for 
submitting modernization plans to CDE are located in this packet.  
 
For more information on the plan review process, visit the SFPD Web page at 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa or call 916-322-2470. 
 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (Title 5) can be obtained on the Internet at 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa/sf/codes.asp.  
 
Submit plans and the required documents to the following address: 

 
 

California Department of Education 

School Facilities Planning Division 

1430 N Street, Suite 1201 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
 

  

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
SCHOOL FACILITIES PLANNING DIVISION 

https://owa.cde.ca.gov/owa/redir.aspx?C=d07470cce833475cb25058ea22d8e5bd&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.cde.ca.gov%2fls%2ffa
https://owa.cde.ca.gov/owa/redir.aspx?C=d07470cce833475cb25058ea22d8e5bd&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.cde.ca.gov%2fls%2ffa%2fsf%2fcodes.asp


 

 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 2 of 11 

SFPD 4.08 Modernization Preliminary Plan Checklist 
 

 
LEA to check boxes indicating the items included in the plan submittal. Submit checklist with plans. 
 
CDE may recommend or require changes; therefore, the submission of preliminary plans is required before 
submission of final plans. It is not necessary to submit construction specifications. 
 
Do not include drawings, calculations, or plans for buildings not included in the modernization project. 
 
 Preliminary Plans 
 

 1. SFPD 4.08A, Project Information for Modernization, including the project tracking number (PTN). 
The PTN is a unique identifier that links application data used by the SFPD, the Division of the State 
Architect (DSA), and the Office of Public School Construction (OPSC). Plans without a PTN will not 
be approved by the SFPD. A PTN may be obtained from the OPSC Web site at 
http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov or the SFPD Web site. 

 
 2. Preliminary (Schematic) Plans 

 
 Half-size plans and matching 11" x 17" plan set. Information on half-size plans must be 
legible and plans must be able to be scaled; otherwise full-size plans must be submitted. 

 
 Site plan must have street designations and labeled student, staff and visitor parking areas, 
as well as bus and parent drop-off areas. 

 
 Floor plans with dimensions and spaces labeled. 

 
 Dimensions and area calculations. 

 
 Interiors or schedules if applicable and available. 

 
 Elevations, if applicable and available. 

 
 Demolition plan, if applicable. Identify the location, type and use of buildings being removed. 

 
 3. Plan Summary Form(s) – Modernization (All that apply. Some projects may include both the   

modernization of existing buildings and the demolition and rebuilding of buildings.) 
 

 The project includes modernization of existing building area. Complete 4.08C Part 1 Plan 
Summary-Modernization for that portion of the project. 

 
 The project includes demolition and rebuilding of 50 percent or more of the existing square 
footage. Complete Plan Summary Form - New Construction. The form is available at 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa. See Plan Summary form for greater detail. 

 
 The project includes demolition and rebuilding, and the area to be replaced is less than 50 
percent of the demolished square footage. Complete the Plan Summary Form – Addition for 
that portion of the project. The form is available at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa. See Plan 
Summary form for greater detail.   

 
 4. Form 4.08C Part 2 – Space Conversions: Complete only for spaces that will be altered in size or  

purpose. 

  

http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa


 

 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 3 of 11 

SFPD 4.08 Modernization Final Plan Checklist 
 

After preliminary plan review, if CDE did not require any changes and the LEA did not revise the plans from 
the preliminary plan submission, the LEA need not submit a second SFPD 4.08C form or a second set of 
plans. Indicate in a cover letter that no changes were made to the plans or the educational specifications, 
and submit an updated SFPD 4.08A, Project Information for Modernization and SFPD 4.08B, Local 
Educational Agency Certifications for Modernization.   

 
Do not include drawings, calculations, or plans for buildings not included in the modernization project. 
 
 

 1. SFPD 4.08A, Project Information for Modernization (updated), including the PTN and the 
construction cost estimate that the LEA will submit to the OPSC. 

 
 2. SFPD 4.08B, Local Educational Agency Certifications for Modernization.  

 
 3. Plan Summary Form(s) - Modernization – Provide updated 4.08C Part 1 Plan Summary – 

Modernization, and/or Plan Summary – New Construction, and/or Plan Summary – Addition as 
applicable. If unchanged since preliminary review, note that no changes have been made to the 
educational specifications since the preliminary plan submission. 

 
 4. Form 4.08C Part 2 – Space Conversions: Complete only for spaces that will be altered in size or 

purpose. 
 

 5. Final plans  
 

 Half-size plans and matching 11" x 17" plan set. Information on half-size plans must be 
legible and plans must be able to be scaled; otherwise full-size plans must be submitted. If 
revisions are limited to a few pages, submit only those pages and note in cover letter that no 
other pages were revised.  

 
 Written response to any questions and/or comments in CDE’s Preliminary Plan Review letter. 

 
 Site plan must have street designations and labeled student, staff, and visitor parking areas, 
as well as bus and parent drop-off areas. 

 
 Floor plans with dimensions and spaces labeled. 

 
 Dimensions and area calculations. 

 
 Interiors or schedules if applicable.  

 
 Elevations if applicable.  

 
 Demolition plan, if applicable. Identify the location, type, and use of buildings being removed. 

 
 



 

 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 4 of 11 

SFPD 4.08A  
Contact and Project Information 

 
 

 Local Educational Agency (LEA) Information 
 

Project  
Tracking # 

7 0 1 7 7 ― 0 0 0 6  

County Sierra 

LEA Sierra-Plumas Jt. Unified School District 

School Name Loyalton High School 

Street and 
Closest Cross 

Street 

Beckwith Rd and 4th Street (700 Fourth Street, Loyalton, CA) 

 LEA Contact (Please Print) 
LEA 

Representative 
Contact for  

Stanford J. Hardeman 

Title Superintendent 

Phone (530) 994-1044 Fax (530) 994-1045 

Mailing 
Address P.O. Box 157 Sierraville, CA  96126 

E-mail shardeman@spjusd.org 

Signature 

 

The governing board of the LEA has authorized me to submit this 
application and to request exemptions pursuant to Title 5, Section 14030 (r). 

 

 
LEA Contact for questions, if different from above  (Please Print) 

Name       

Title       

Phone       Fax       

E-Mail       

 Architect Contact (Please Print) 

Contact Name Karen Copsey 

Firm Name Nichols Melburg & Rossetto 

Mailing 
Address 300 Knollcrest Drive Redding, CA  96002 

Phone (530) 222-3300 Fax (530) 222-3538 

E-mail 
copsey@nmrdesign.com 
 

  
  



 

 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 5 of 11 

 
 
SFPD 4.08A  

 

Project Information 

Plans are submitted for   Preliminary Review     Final Approval 

Grade Levels 9-12 Grades in Class Size Reduction na 

Beginning classroom count  
(this project)* 
 
 

na Project Capacity (this project) na 

Ending classroom count  
(this project)** 

na Total Project Area - this project 
 (square feet) 

22,500 

Are there related new construction 
or modernization projects?  
Explain. 

no 

 
*Existing site: Before demolition, space conversions or removal of classrooms (if applicable)  
**The total number of classrooms at the end of this project 

 
 
 

 
Site Area 

School Site Acres – Gross   16 
 

Joint-Use Acres – Gross   0 
 

School Site Acres – Net     14.5 

 
Joint Use Acres – Net   0 
 

School Site Acres Net plus Joint use Acres Net   14.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Construction Cost Estimate 

 
 
Construction Cost Estimate  
as reported to DSA - This figure multiplied by 
0.0007 to determine the CDE plan review fee. 
(Education Code Section 17251(a)) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
$1,151,981 



 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 6 of 11 

 

SFPD 4.08B  
Local Educational Agency Certifications for Modernization 
(For final plans only) 
 

County Project Tracking Number 

Sierra 7 0 1 7 7 ― 0 0 0 6 

Local Educational Agency School 

Sierra-Plumas Jt. Unified School District Loyalton High School 

 

1.  Existing School Safety Certification - An LEA modernizing an existing school site must certify that it 
has reviewed the following California Code of Regulations, Title 5 standards for this school modernization 
project and that the project will not create any new significant safety hazards or exacerbate any existing 
safety hazards to students.  

 

Check each box to indicate compliance. 
 

California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 14010: 
 

 (c) Powerlines/Electromagnetic fields 
 (d) Within 1,500 feet of a railroad 
 (e) Traffic noise 
 (f) Active fault or fault trace 
 (g) Flood or dam inundation area 
 (h) Near an above ground water or fuel storage tank or within 1,500 feet of a pipeline, which can pose a 

safety hazard 
 (i) Liquefaction/landslides 
 (l) Traffic/pedestrian safety 
 (m) Compatible existing and proposed surrounding land uses 
 (q) Exposure to adverse light, wind, and air pollution 
 (r) Easements restricting access or building placement 
 (t) Within 2,000 feet of a significant disposal of hazardous waste 

 

2.  California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Compliance 
Per Public Resources Code sections 21000 et seq.; and CEQA Guidelines sections 15000 et seq. 
 

(Check one and fill in dates as applicable.) 
 

The LEA certifies that it has completed for this project all actions required pursuant to CEQA and 
determined this project to be: 

 

  A. Not a project for purposes of CEQA and that no CEQA action is required; or 
  B. Completely exempt from preparation of CEQA documents either by (please check as 

appropriate) ___statutory, X categorical, or ___general rule exemption; or 

  C. Fully covered in a Negative Declaration/Initial Study adopted by the LEA; or 
  D. Fully covered in a Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) adopted and certified by the 

LEA; or 
  E. Fully covered within another lead agency’s adopted CEQA document, and if necessary, 

the LEA has adopted a finding of no new impact. 
 

 If applicable: 
 

Date the Final Environmental Impact Report or Negative Declaration was adopted:       
Date the project was approved by the LEA governing board: NEED 
Date the Notice of Exemption or Notice of Determination was filed with the County Clerk: NEED 



 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 7 of 11 

SFPD 4.08B  

 
 
3.  CDE Recommended Acres and Additional SAB Funding  
 
The SAB requires information on the CDE recommended acres for a project. This information is used to 
determine if the project is eligible for specified additional funding. The CDE collects the following information 
for all projects regardless if the LEA intends to apply for the additional funding. See SAB Regulation Section 
1859.83(d).  

 
Physical Education Facilities  

 
For middle schools, does the educational program require football and track facilities?   Yes     No 

 
 For high schools, does the educational program require: 

1) Swimming pool?    Yes     No 
2) Diving pool?    Yes     No 
3) Baseball field, including bleachers and dugouts?  Yes     No 
4) Football field and track, including a stadium?  Yes     No 

 
 
LEA Completion 

Grades Kinder. 1 – 3 4 – 6 7 – 8 9 – 12 
Special 

Ed. 
Nonsevere 

Special 
Ed. 

Severe 

Total 

Current CBEDS Enrollment of 
School (as adjusted for  
MTYRE*, if applicable)                         120             120 

 
CDE Completion 

 
 

 

CDE Verification of CBEDS         

Net Capacity Added by This 
Project SAB Regulations 

sections 1859-1883(d) 
Education Code Section 

17071.25(a)(2)         

Non-severe Special Education/ 
Severe Special Education 

Students         

Total Enrollment of School         

**CDE-Recommended Acres         

   
*For MTYRE, enter the maximum enrollment on the site at one time (SAB 
Regulation Section 1859.2. 
**Based on the Guide to School Site Analysis and Development, 
2000 Edition 

 
 
 

Net Usable Acres as a Percent 
of CDE-Recommended Acres 

 

 
  



 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 8 of 11 

SFPD 4.08B  

 

I certify, as the local educational agency representative: 

 
1. The information reported on this form is true and correct and that the above named local 

educational agency has reviewed the California Code of Regulations, Title 5 standards, cited in 
Section 1 herein, for this school construction/replacement project and has determined that the 
project will not create any new significant safety hazards or exacerbate any existing safety 
hazards to students; 

 
2. Pursuant to Education Code Section 17077.10 every permanent or portable classroom in this  

project will be provided a telephone that is a hard-wired or wireless connection to a public-
switched telephone network, and 

 
3    If a different and/or additional California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) document (e.g., 

negative declaration, environmental impact report, or supplement) is adopted for this project 
subsequent to this certification, the local educational agency shall notify immediately the School 
Facility Planning Division and the Office of Public School Construction.  

 

Stanford J. Hardeman  Superintendent 

Name of Authorized Local Educational Agency Representative  Title 

        

Signature of Authorized Local Educational Agency 
Representative 

 Date 



 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 9 of 11 

 

SFPD 4.08C, PART ONE  

Plan Summary - Modernization  
(Submit with preliminary and final modernization plans) 
 

County Project Tracking Number 

Sierra 7 0 1 7 7 ― 0 0 0 6 

Local Educational Agency School 

Sierra-Plumas Jt. Unified School District Loyalton High School 

Summary of how the project supports the LEA’s educational program: 

Roof replacement 

Description of the scope of work in the following areas: 

 A. Technology (  Centralized Technology Laboratory     Dispersed Technology     Both     None) 

 NA 

 B. Science (indicate if the project includes science laboratories and if caustic and/or corrosive materials will be used) 

 

NA 

 C. Heating, Ventilation, Air Conditioning 

 NA 

 D. Plumbing 

 NA 



 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 10 of 11 

 

SFPD 4.08C, PART ONE  
 E. Lighting, Ceilings, Electrical 

 

Ceiling repair as necessary 

 F. Floors, Doors, Walls, Windows 

 Wall repair as necessary 

 G. Cabinetry 

 NA 

 H. Accessibility 

 NA 

 I. Other 

       



 

SFPD Form 4.08 Series (Rev. 07/10) – 11 of 11 

 

SFPD 4.08C, PART TWO  

Space Conversions (Complete only for spaces that will be altered in size or purpose) 
 

County Project Tracking Number 

Sierra 7 0 1 7 7 ― 0 0 0 6 

Local Educational Agency School 

Sierra Plumas Jt. Unified School District Loyalton High School 
 

Some modernization projects may include a change in the purpose and/or size of a particular space to provide for an environment suitable to the current and 
future educational program. If a space is altered significantly, complete this form. Removing a wall to create one large classroom out of two current classrooms 
would be significant. However, removing a stall in a restroom to make it handicapped accessible would be insignificant and not required on this form. 
 
NOTE: Do not complete this section if teaching stations and support spaces are not being altered in size or purpose. 
 
Column A Building Identification: Indicate the building identification by letter, number, or name. 
 
Column B Type of Space and Educational Program: Label the type of space provided in each building under the column labeled "current”. Indicate under 

the column labeled "planned" the type of space after modernization. 
 
Column C Square Feet Per Space and Number of Spaces: Provide the current number of square feet per type of space to be converted and the number 

of spaces under the two columns under "current." Provide the square feet for the newly planned space and number of spaces under the 
"planned" column. 

 

For example: Current Planned 

 Square Feet No. of Spaces Square Feet No. of Spaces 

 780 2 1,560 1 

 

Column D Purposes: Provide a brief explanation of the educational purpose for the conversion. Example: A metal shop is converted to a simulation 
technology laboratory to provide students with exposure to various skills in operating robotics equipment and related computer programming. 

 

A B C D 

Building Identification 

Type of Space and 
Educational Program 

Square Feet per Space and 
Number of Spaces 

Purposes 

Current Planned 
Current Planned 

Square 
Feet 

No. of 
Spaces 

Square 
Feet 

No. of 
Spaces 

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                

Attach additional sheets if necessary 
 


	1_SPJUSD_Agenda_2_13.pdf
	2_LCFF Analysis Jan 2013.pdf
	

	3_Cafeteria.pdf
	4.0_spjusdjanobj2013.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	









	4_Board Summary Enrollments 2012-13.pdf
	

	5_01-8-13 SPJUSD Minutes.pdf
	6_spjusdchksjan2013.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	



	7_Contract_LHS Roof revised_1 2 13.pdf
	8_2006-18 Sierraville School Agreement with Sierra County.pdf
	9_Title I Parent Compact 1213.pdf
	10_LES Single Plan 2013.pdf
	11_LMS Single Plan January 2013.pdf
	12_LHS_LHS Single Plan.pdf
	13_DVL Single Plan 2013.pdf
	14_waiver.pdf
	15_SchoolDistrict_Census.pdf
	16_Superintendent Evaluation Form.pdf
	17_Climatec Attachment C.pdf
	18_Auditor.pdf
	18_Loyalton 408 1-11-13 CDE application.pdf

